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AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Wednesday, 25 July 2018

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Cafe - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

The internal and external auditors will be available to meet committee
members from 6.15 to 6.30 pm. Any councillors who are not able or do
not wish to attend the session at 6.15 pm are requested to join the
meeting with the Executive Councillors and officers at 6.30 pm.
17 July 2018
PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence F_PR

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee F_PR
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests.

3.

To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting F_PR

4.

External Audit Findings F_PR

5.

Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 F_PR

6.

Draft Statement of Accounts 2017/18 F_PR
Appendix A available at
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/3146/Statement-of-Accounts-2017--2018/pdf/02_HPBC_Statement_of_Accounts_1718_Draft.pdf

7.

Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 F_PR

8.

Treasury Management Update: Mid-Year Report 2018/19 F_PR

9.

2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report May to June 2018 F_PR

10.

Internal Audit - Annual Report 2017/18 F_PR

11.

2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit F_PR

12.

2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory Committee
F_PR

13.

Review of Polling Station F_PR

14.

Work Programme F_PR

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Audit & Regulatory Committee
Councillor J Douglas (Chair)
Councillor F Sloman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor A Barrow
Councillor C Boynton
Councillor S Helliwell
Councillor D Kerr
Councillor J Pritchard
Councillor J Todd
Councillor J Walton
Grant
Morgan

Agenda Item 3

High Peak Borough Council

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Wednesday, 2 May 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

Present:

Councillor J Douglas (Chair)
Councillors S Helliwell, D Kerr, A McKeown, J Pritchard, F Sloman, J Todd
and J Walton
Councillor E Thrane, Mr P Carnall and Mrs C Morgan were also in
attendance
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors A Barrow and
N Longos

18/46

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2018 be approved
as a correct record.

18/47

TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 3)
There were no declarations of interest made.

18/48

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLANNED AUDIT FEE 2018/19
(Agenda Item 4)
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd were specified as an appointing
person under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local
Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. They have the power to
make auditor appointments for audits of ‘opted-in’ local government bodies
from 2018/19.
The scale fee for 2018/19 had been set at £36,400 which represented a
reduction of 23% from previous years’ scale fees.
RESOLVED:
That the planned audit fee for 2018/19 be noted.

18/49

EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
(Agenda Item 5)
The report gave a snapshot of progress to date, which showed no issues
after the early substantive testing. As a result, the Council was in a good
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Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

position to submit its Financial Statements in line with the new, earlier
requirements.
RESOLVED:
That the External Audit Update be noted.
18/50

REVISED TREASURY STRATEGY 2018-19
(Agenda Item 6)
The Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19 ensured that the Council’s
capital and treasury activities for the next four years were affordable and
properly managed. The 2018/19 had been revised to take account of the
proposed procurement of refuse vehicles - as the most cost effective
method of financing. As detailed in the report ‘Alliance Environment
Services – Financing of Vehicle Fleet to Council on 3rd May 2018.
RESOLVED:
That the Revised Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement
(TMSS) 2018/19 be recommended to Council for approval.

18/51

AMENDMENT TO ACCOUNTING POLICY - PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
(Agenda Item 7)
The report sought approval to make an amendment to the Council’s
accounting policies. A review of the Council’s existing accounting policies
had identified an amendment that would confirm the status of an existing
practice adopted when recording the change of value of assets that
comprise more than one component.
RESOLVED:
That the following change to the accounting policies be approved:
The Property Plant and Equipment Policy has the following bullet point
added to its componentisation section:


18/52

Where valuation of a componentised asset identifies a change in value
of an individual component this will be applied to its carrying value.

WHISTLEBLOWING - UPDATE
(Agenda Item 8)
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 received the Royal Assent in July
1998 and came into force on 2 July 1999. The Act gave protection to
“whistleblowers” that raise concerns about serious fraud or malpractice at
their place of work against victimisation or dismissal, provided they had
acted in a responsible way in dealing with their concerns. In support of this,
the Council actively promoted its Whistleblowing Policy to ensure all
relevant parties were aware of it and of how and when to use it. It was
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Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

confirmed that the Policy should be published on the Council’s website and
that it also applied to contractors.
RESOLVED:
That the activity outlined in the report, aimed at promoting the
Whistleblowing Policy within High Peak Borough Council be noted.
18/53

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
(Agenda Item 9)
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit Manager should establish a risk
based audit plan to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity,
consistent with the Council’s goals. The audit plan must be based on a
documented risk assessment undertaken at least annually.
RESOLVED:
That the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 be approved.

18/54

2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PERIODIC REPORT
(Agenda Item 10)
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to
“undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public
sector internal auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report
periodically to the Audit Committee on the internal audit activity’s
performance relative to its plan. Councillors discussed feedback from the
S106 Monitoring Group and strategic partnerships, the review of energy bills
and payment of invoices.
RESOLVED:
That the progress information contained within the report be noted.

18/55

WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 11)
Consideration was given to the Committee work programme for 2018/19.
RESOLVED:
That the Committee Work Programme be noted.
The meeting concluded at 7.17 pm
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Audit & Regulatory Committee
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

CHAIRMAN
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DRAFT

Audit Findings

This version of the
report is a draft. Its
contents and subject
matter remain under
review and its contents
may change and be
expanded as part of the
finalisation of the report.

Year ending 31 March 2018
Page 7

High Peak Borough Council
20 July 2018

Agenda Item 4
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A. Action plan
Grant Patterson
Engagement Lead

B. Audit adjustments
C. Fees

T: +44 121 232 5296

E: grant.b.patterson@uk.gt.com

D. Audit Opinion

Avtar Sohal
Senior Audit Manager
T: +44 121 232 5420
E: avtar.sohal@uk.gt.com
Lisa Morrey
Audit in-charge

T: +44 121 232 5302
E: lisa.morrey@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements
in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our
prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report
was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines
This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of High Peak Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 for those charged with governance.
Financial
Statements

Page 9
Value for Money
arrangements

Statutory duties

Under the International Standards of Auditing (UK) (ISAs), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Council's financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Council’s financial position and of the group and Council’s
expenditure and income for the year, and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting and
prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. We did not identify any
adjustments to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. During the
course of the audit we have found minor presentational and disclosure amendments
(Appendix B) which you have adjusted for and have not impacted the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. We have made one recommendation to
management in respect of journals controls (Appendix A).

We are also required to report whether other information published
together with the audited financial statements (including the Chief
Financial Officer’s Narrative Report, the Statement of Responsibilities,
the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Glossary), is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

-

receipt of the management representation letter; and

-

review of the final set of financial statements.

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Council has made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for
money (VFM) conclusion')

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money
arrangements. We have concluded that High Peak Borough Council has made proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for
the year ended 31 March 2018..

Subject to outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit
opinion following the Audit and Regulatory Committee meeting on 25 July 2018, as
detailed in Appendix D. These outstanding items include:

We have concluded that the other information published with the financial statements,
which includes the Chief Financial Officer’s Narrative Report, the Statement of
Responsibilities, the Annual Governance Statement and Glossary, are consistent with
our knowledge of your organisation and with the financial statements we have audited.

We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in
Appendix D.

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.
to:
We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and the completion of the audit when we give our audit.
duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• certify the closure of the audit

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Financial statements

Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit
This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the
Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management
and the Audit Committee.
As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion
on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of
those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

•

An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment including its IT systems
and controls; and

•

Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Conclusion
We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit and Regulatory Committee meeting on 25 July 2018, as detailed in
Appendix D. These outstanding items include:
-

receipt of management representation letter; and

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and
is risk based, and in particular included:

-

review of the final set of financial statements.

Page 10

Audit approach

Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Council Amount (£)

Our assessment of the value of has been adjusted to reflect the receipt of the draft
financial statements. We detail in the table below our assessment of materiality for High
Peak Borough Council.
Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements

973,000

We have deemed the final financial statement materiality to be 2% of gross
expenditure, the same benchmark we used in the prior year.

Performance materiality

730,000

We have applied a performance materiality of 75% of materiality.

Trivial matters

48,650

Triviality has been calculated at 5% of materiality

Materiality for Senor Officer
Remuneration

19,000

We have calculated a specific materiality for Senior Office remuneration based on 2%
of total senior officer remuneration.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Significant audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan
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Commentary

Improper revenue recognition
Auditor commentary
Under ISA 240 (UK) there is a presumed risk that
Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Council, we have
revenue may be misstated due to the improper
determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
recognition of revenue. This presumption can be
• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk
of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited
revenue recognition.
• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including High Peak Borough Council, mean that all forms
We did not identify improper revenue recognition of
of fraud are seen as unacceptable
revenue as a risk requiring special audit consideration
Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for High Peak Borough Council. Whilst not a significant risk, as
part of our audit work we did undertake work on material revenue items. Our work did not identify any matters that would
indicate our rebuttal was incorrect.

Management override of controls

Auditor commentary

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride
of controls is present in all entities.

We have completed the following procedures to gain assurance over this risk

We identified management override of controls as a
risk requiring special audit consideration.

•

review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by management

•

testing of journal entries

•

review of unusual significant transactions and any changes in accounting policy.

Our audit work has not identified any instances of management override of controls.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Significant audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Valuation of property, plant and equipment
The Council revalues its land and buildings every five
years, to ensure that carrying value is not materially
different from fair value. This represents a significant
estimate by management in the financial statements.

Auditor commentary

We identified the valuation of land and buildings
revaluations and impairments as a risk requiring
special audit consideration.
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We have:


reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work



considered the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.



discussed with the valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge the key assumptions.



reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our
understanding.



tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's asset register



evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and how
management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.



we have carried out procedures to ensure that the difference between fair value and carrying value of assets not
valued in year are not materially different.

From the audit procedures carried out we have gained sufficient assurance to conclude that the valuation of property,
plant and equipment is free from material misstatement
Valuation of pension fund net liability
The Council's pension fund asset and liability as
reflected in its balance sheet represent a significant
estimate in the financial statements.
We identified the valuation of the pension fund net
liability as a risk requiring special audit consideration.

Auditor commentary
We have:


identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not materially misstated
and assess whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk
of material misstatement



evaluated the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension fund valuation



gained an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out



undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made



checked the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the financial statements
with the actuarial report from your actuary.

From the audit procedures carried out we have gained sufficient assurance to conclude that the valuation of the pension
fund net liability is free from material misstatement.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Reasonably possible audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Employee remuneration
Payroll expenditure represents a significant percentage approximately 21% - of the Council’s operating expenses.

Auditor commentary
We have
•

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual •
transactions and an interface between the payroll and ledger
systems, there is a risk that payroll expenditure in the
•
accounts could be understated. We therefore identified
completeness of payroll expenses as a risk requiring
•
particular audit attention
•

Page 13



evaluated the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll expenditure for appropriateness
gained an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for payroll expenditure and evaluate the
design of the associated controls
reviewed year-end payroll reconciliation and checked that amounts in the accounts are reconciled to ledger
and through to payroll reports
agreed payroll related accruals (e.g. unpaid leave accrual) to supporting documents
completed substantive analytical procedures on payroll data

From the audit procedures completed we are satisfied that employee remuneration balances disclosed in the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Operating expenses
Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also
represents a significant percentage 67% of the Council’s
operating expenses. Management uses judgement to
estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs.

Auditor commentary

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk
requiring particular audit attention:

We have:
•

evaluated the Council's accounting policy for recognition of non-pay expenditure for appropriateness

•

gained an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for non-pay expenditure and evaluate the
design of the associated controls

•

documented the accruals process and challenge underlying assumptions, source date and basis for
calculation

•

tested a sample of payments and ensure that they have been charged in the appropriate year

•

reviewed the year end accounts payable reconciliation and investigate significant reconciling items.

From the audit procedures completed we are satisfied that operating expenses disclosed in the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Other issues
This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan.



Issue

Auditor view

We have carried out a review of the Council’s assessment of the joint
operation with ANSA for the waste collection under the company Alliance
Environmental Services.

Our review has found that we are satisfied with the conclusions drawn by the
Council’s assessment of the joint operation and accounting for it line with IFRS 11
i.e. the authority’s share of the assets and liabilities, income and expenditure and
cash flows of such a collaborative arrangement are consolidated line by line into
the Council’s own Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Cash Flow
Statement and Balance Sheet. Therefore there is no requirement for group
accounts.

Page 14
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As part of our final audit procedures we are satisfied that the consolidation into the
financial statements are in line with our expectations and that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Accounting policies
Accounting area

Summary of policy

Comments

Revenue recognition

 Activity is accounted for the year that it takes place, not simply when cash
payments are made or received.

We are satisfied that the policy is appropriate
and in line with sector guidance, the CIPFA
Code of Practice and Industry norms.

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Authority

 Key estimates and judgements include:
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Classification of leases



Revaluations



Impairments



Accruals



Valuation of pension fund net liability



Provision for NNDR appeals



Joint arrangements

Other critical policies


(Green)
Policy is
appropriate
and
disclosure
sufficient

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority
can measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it
is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Authority
Judgements and estimates

Assessment

We have reviewed the adequacy and
implementation of the key estimates and
judgements included in the Council’s financial
statements and are satisfied that the policies
are in line with sector guidance, CIPFA Code of
Practice and industry norms.

We have reviewed the Council's policies
against the requirements of the CIPFA Code of
Practice. The Council's accounting policies are
appropriate and consistent with previous years.


(Green)
Policy is
appropriate
and
disclosure
sufficient


(Green)
Policies are
appropriate
and
disclosure
sufficient

Assessment
 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially be open to challenge by regulators
 Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure
 Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Other communication requirements
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Commentary



Matters in relation to fraud

 We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our
audit procedures



Matters in relation to related
parties



Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.



Written representations

 A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council



Confirmation requests from
third parties

 We requested from management permission to send requests to confirm year end bank and investment balances. This permission
was granted and the requests were sent, and all received to confirm year end balances.



Disclosures

 Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

Page 16

Issue

•

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed
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Other responsibilities under the Code
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.



Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements ((including
the Chief Financial Officer’s Narrative Report, the Statement of Responsibilities, the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and
Glossary), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unqualified opinion in this respect – refer to appendix D



Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is
misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit
 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

Page 17

We have nothing to report on these matters.



Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions. We have nothing to report on these matters.



Certification of the closure of
the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2017/18 audit of High Peak Borough Council in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix D

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in
November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are
required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

We carried out an initial risk assessment and did not identify any significant risks in
respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance contained in
AGN03.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

We have continued our review of relevant documents and held on-going discussions
with management up to the date of giving our report, and have not identified any
further significant risks where we need to perform further work.

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

For 2017/18 the Council set an original net Revenue budget of £10.4m, financed from
£9.9m of in year revenue leaving funding of £0.5m from general reserves. The actual
performance resulted in £1.5m operating surplus and therefore reserves of £0.5m
were not required to be drawn from.

Page 18

This was the first year of the Council's 4 year Efficiency and Rationalisation
programme which targets to save £2.1m by 31/3/2021 to offset the 4 year shortfall in
the medium term financial plan. The in year efficiency target of £0.31m has been
achieved following the implementation of various measures by the council. The HRA
Financial Improvement plan identified £1.2m to be saved for the period 2017/18 to
2020/21 and during 2017/18 the efficiency target of £0.62m has been met. The
contract with ANSA has proceeded as anticipated.

Informed
decision
making

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work
We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention..

Significant matters discussed with management
There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from
management or those charged with governance.

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Overall conclusion
Sustainable
resource
deployment

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18

Based on the work we have concluded that the Council had proper
arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it delivered value for
money in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Financial Resilience & Going concern
Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).
Going concern commentary
Management's assessment process

Page 19

Management have carried out a written assessment which
confirms:
• There are no events, of which they are aware, that could
cause sufficient material uncertainty to cast significant
doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern. This extends but is not limited to at least twelve
months from the Balance Sheet date.
• The Council have a firmly embedded financial planning
process which includes a rolling four year medium term
financial plan, which is updated twice per year.
• There assessment carried out in regards to estimations of
budgets and the adequacy of reserves and therefore
monitor any risks over going concern.

Auditor commentary
CIPFA Code of Practice 2017/18 Code para 3.4.2.23 states "Local authorities that can only be discontinued under
statutory prescription shall prepare their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting; that is, the financial
statements shall be prepared on the assumption that the functions of the authority will continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future".
The presumption in local government is that the going concern assumption does apply unless there is specific evidence
to the contrary from factors such as:
- announcement to wind up the authority
- failure to set a balanced budget
- external assessment concludes unsustainable
- financial plans show unable to meet obligations for foreseeable future
- significant doubts over forward financial planning arrangements.
Management’s assessment has considered these areas and concluded that there is no material uncertainty in respect of
going concern. The councils medium term plan demonstrates that savings are required over the period of the medium
term financial plan, however, have an efficiency and rationalisation programme to meet these challenges and have met
their savings targets for 2017/18.
As such we consider that the assessment undertaken by the Council on going concern is a reasonable and valid one and
there are no indications of material uncertainty.

Work performed

Auditor commentary

Detail audit work performed on mgmts. assessment

•

Our audit did not identify any events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on going concern assumption.

•

We have reviewed the estimates and assumptions made in the medium term financial plan and have deemed these
to be reasonable and in line with the environment the Council work in.

•

We have reviewed the progress that the Council has made against the efficiency and rationalisation programme and
have noted that the council have made the in year savings as required by the plan

•

We have reviewed the councils outturn position and have noted that they have made surplus of £1.5m and did not
require drawdown from reserves as originally anticipated.

Concluding comments

Auditor commentary
•

We propose to issue an unmodified opinion for 2017/18.

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Independence and ethics
Independence and ethics
•

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.
Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix C.

Audit and Non-audit services

Page 20

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. We have listed the non audit services on page 15 of this
report.
The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit Committee. Any changes and full details of all
fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our
Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.
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Independence and Non Audit Services
Service

Fees £

Threats

Safeguards

2,400

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £2,400 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

5,625

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £5,625 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.

Audit related
Agreed upon procedures
report for pooling capital
receipts return 2016/17
(January 2018)

Non-audit related
CFO Insights
(subscription)
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PLACE Analytics
(subscription)

Nature of the service presents no other threat to independence as CFO Insights is an online
software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segment and visualise all the key
data relating to the financial performance of a local authority. The financial data, revenue outturn
and budget data is provided by CIPFA and the socio-economic data is drawn from Place Analytics.
The data is contextualised using a range of socio-economic indicators enabling the local auithority
to understand their relative performance.

5,625

Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence
as the fee for this work is £5,625 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £47,273 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is
no contingent element to it. These factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable
level.
Nature of the service presents no other threat to independence as Place Analytics is an online
software service offering that enables users to rapidly analyse, segment and visualise a host of data
sets relating to the Economic, social and environmental make-up of a local authority. The tool
enables the user to review the relative strengths and challenges facing the council across these
measures to ensure strategic planning and decision making is underpinned by evidence whilst
saving time by collating disparate data sources into one tool.
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Appendix A

Action plan
We have identified one recommendation for the Council as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendation with management and we
will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2018/19 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the
course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment




Low
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Low

Issue and risk

Recommendations

Audit testing identified that there was not a formal written journal
policy for the council in relation who posts and authorises
journals.

•

We recommend the council puts in a written policy in respect to journal processing
and authorisation

In year the council had a migration of payroll information to a new
IT system and it was noted there were some issues in migration
of data causing some errors in calculations.

•

We recommend when transferring data to a new IT system it is essential that the
Council carry out data migration testing to ensure such information has transferred
over to the new system correctly and is complete.

Controls
 High – Significant effect on control system
 Medium – Effect on control system
 Low – Best practice
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18
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Appendix B

Audit Adjustments
Adjusted and unadjusted misstatements
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. There are no adjusted or
unadjusted misstatements that we are required to report to you.

Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Detail

Auditor recommendations

Note 1c

We noted a mapping error which meant that employee expenses was overstated
as it included in interest costs in error, which should have been allocated to other
service expenditure. Employee expenditure costs should be £13,709k and other
service expenditure should total £34,935k. There is no impact on the CIES.

We recommend that the Council should make these
classification changes.



Note 3a Other Operating
Expenditure

We have identified that the note needs to also separately include an increase of
capital receipts to £1,692k and an increase in expenditure derecognition to
£4,078k as these were original shown at a net position. There is no impact on
the CIES

We recommend that the Council should make these
classification changes.



Note 3d Other third
party funds

Testing identified note 3d 'other third party funds‘ was understated by £70k and
the total balance will increase from £21,252k to £21,322k. There is no impact on
the CIES.

We recommend that the Council should make these
classification changes.



Note 3d Other third
party funds

We have noted an error in the compilation of note 3d. The revised note should
show housing benefits subsidy at £19,773k, a new line for administration grant of
£262k, other third party funds £370k and new burdens of £125k. There is no
impact on the CIES.

We recommend that the Council should make these
classification changes.



Presentation and
Disclosure of notes

The audit team found a number of minor presentational and disclosure
amendments for the Council which we do not need to bring to the attention of the
Audit Committee individually

We recommended that the Council enhanced some
disclosures in the financial statements and also
remove non material notes.
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Disclosure omission
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Appendix C

Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services

Audit Fees
Proposed fee

Final fee

Council Audit

£47,273

£47,273

Grant Certification – Housing Benefits Subsidy

£8,699

TBC – Certification to be
completed

Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

£55,972

£TBC
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The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) . Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit
subsidy certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are
shown under 'Fees for other services'.

Non Audit Fees
Fees for other services

Fees
£

Audit related services:
•

Pooling of Capital Receipts

£2,400

Non-audit services

•

CFO Insights (subscription)

£5,625

•

PLACE Analytics (subscription)

£5,625

Total non audit fees (excluding VAT)

£13,650
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Appendix D

Draft audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report
Independent auditor’s report to the members of High Peak Borough
Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of High Peak Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended
31 March 2018 which comprise the Statement of Accounting Policy, Movement in Reserves Statement, the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the Housing Revenue
Account Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the
United Kingdom 2017/18.
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2018 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended;

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Who we are reporting to
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for High Peak Borough Council | 2017/18

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Other information
The Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts set out on pages 2 to 112 and the
Annual Governance Statement other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the course of our work including that gained through work in
relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of its resources or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of
Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’
published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware
from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks
and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
19
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Appendix D Continued
Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the
financial statements in the Statement of Accounts on pages 2 to 112 and the Annual Governance Statement for
the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if:

we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
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Responsibilities of the Authority, the Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on page 25,
the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer
is the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer. The Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer is responsible for
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority lacks funding for its continued
existence or when policy decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the Authority.
The Audit and Regulatory Committee is Those Charged with Governance.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the
Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on
the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all
significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller
and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.
[Signature]
Grant Patterson
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

The Colmore Building, 20 Colmore Plaza, Birmingham B4 6AT
xx July 2018
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Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Operational
Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Andrew Stokes – Executive Director
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Statement Framework
Appendix 2 - Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

Regulation 6 (1) (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the
Council to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its
system of internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement
(AGS).

1.2

The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in
relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the Council
approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to accounts’
relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a code of practice
or other document which is identified for the purposes of this provision by
regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance is contained in the
CIPFA/SOLACE framework and guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government’.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the committee approve the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Guidance on the production of the AGS is contained within the 2016 edition of
CIPFA/SOLACE’s ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Governement
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Framework’. The structure and framework for the production of the AGS is
summarised in Appendix 1.
3.2

In essence, the Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that
recognises, records and publishes our governance arrangements as defined
in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. The AGS includes the following
information:






3.3

An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound
system of governance;
the purpose of the governance framework;
the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the
governance arrangements;
the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the governance framework;
the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions
taken or proposed to address these issues.

The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief
Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility
as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. As a corporate document
the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and Councillors of the
authority. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this
they will need to rely on many sources of assurance, such as:









Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer;
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer;
Heads of Service & Service managers;
Members;
the Audit Manager;
performance and risk management;
third-parties eg. partnerships;
external audit and other review agencies.

3.4

The production of the 2017/18 AGS has been undertaken in line with the
CIPFA guidance. The process has been co-ordinated through a Corporate
Governance Management Group containing the key officers who are given
ultimate responsibility for drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the
supporting evidence.

3.5

An analysis of the relevant assurances and supporting evidence has been
undertaken to produce a fully compliant AGS for 2017/18. The AGS is
attached at Appendix 2 for Councillors consideration and approval.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that recognises,
records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements as defined in

Page 30

the CIPFA/SOLACE framework and therefore helps to confirm effective use of
financial and other resources to ensure value for money.
5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Approve the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement (Recommended). The
AGS will provide an accurate representation of the governance arrangements
in place during the year whilst highlighting those areas where improvement is
required. Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 will be
achieved.

5.2

Do not approve the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement (Not
Recommended). Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
will not be achieved unless an amended version of the AGS is approved.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
In resolving any issues that have arisen from the outcome of the
AGS, it is anticipated that corrective action will be implemented
within existing budgetary provision.

6.5

Legal
Inadequacies in governance arrangements, if not addressed, pose
a litigation risk. The extent and nature of such risks will vary
depending on the nature and extent of the deficiency and the
resulting damage/loss (if relevant). However, the suggested action
to be taken to address the governance weaknesses will assist
greatly in minimising the risks and potential legal implications
identified.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
Key officers who are given ultimate responsibility for drafting the
AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence have
been consulted in the compilation process.
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6.8

Risk Assessment
The AGS takes assurance from the Council’s Risk Management
Framework.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

CIPFA/SOLACE Publication –
Delivering Good Governance
In Local Government:
Framework and Guidance
Notes for English Authorities
2016 Editions

Moorlands House - Leek

Andrew P Stokes
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief
Finance Officer
Tel: (01538) 395622
e-mail: andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
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7.

Background and Detail

7.1

During 2016, CIPFA/SOLACE produced a new Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government Framework and Guidance Notes for English Authorities.
The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of
the Council and provides a structure to help with our approach to governance.
The Council should therefore test our governance structures and partnerships
against the principles contained in the Framework by:




7.2

reviewing existing governance arrangements;
developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance,
including arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness;
reporting publicly on compliance with our code on an annual basis and on
how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements
in the year and on planned changes.

The Framework outlines seven core principles of good governance as follows:








Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting the rule of law;
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and
environmental benefits;
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of
the intended outcomes;
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it;
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management;
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to
deliver effective accountability.

7.3

To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to
demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the core and subprinciples contained in the Framework. Each Authority should therefore
develop and maintain a local code of governance / governance arrangements
reflecting the principles set out in the Framework.

7.4

Local Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement in
order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their own code
of governance, which in turn, is consistent with the good governance principles
in the Framework. It is this statement that has the legal backing of Regulation
6 (2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. HPBC’s current Code of
Corporate Governance which forms part of the ethical framework of the
Council, complies with the requirements of the framework and reflects the
format of the most recent guidance.

7.5

The arrangements required for gathering assurances for the preparation of the
AGS provide an opportunity for authorities to consider the robustness of their
governance arrangements. In doing so, authorities need to recognise that this
is a corporate issue, affecting everyone in the organisation. It is also important
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to recognise that the purpose of the AGS is not just to be ‘compliant’, but also
to provide an accurate representation of the arrangements in place during the
year and to highlight those areas where improvement is required. This will also
demonstrate to stakeholders what those arrangements are.
7.6

Once the AGS has been produced it is required to be reviewed and approved
by an independent review body of the Council as a separate item from the
Statement of Accounts. The purpose of this report is to present the 2017/18
AGS to the members of the Audit & Regulatory Committee for consideration
and approval.

8.

Compilation of the AGS

8.1

In drafting the AGS, it is essential to bear in mind its purposes. In essence, the
AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and publishes the
Council’s governance arrangements as defined in the CIPFA/SOLACE
framework. The flowchart detailed at Appendix 1 sets out the framework for
compiling the AGS. It identifies some typical dynamics of an AGS that should
be considered and shows how they can be brought together and evidenced.

8.2

The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief
Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint
responsibility as signatories for the accuracy and completeness of the AGS.
The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this
they are likely to rely on many sources of assurance, such as:


The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer - the statutory
functions undertaken by these two officers provide a key source of
assurance that the systems and procedures of internal control that are in
operation are effective, efficient and are being complied with on a routine
basis. Both officers are involved in the production of the AGS.



Management – Senior managers are charged with the responsibility of
ensuring that policies within their service area are complied with and are
held accountable for their actions/operations in delivering the service and
achieving objectives. All Directors, Heads of Service and Service
Managers were asked to complete and sign a Managers Assurance
Statement to document the level of assurance that they could give for the
internal controls in place in their service area and their effectiveness with
regard to ensuring accountability, prudence, VFM, data quality, compliance
with policy, Financial Regulations and Procedure Rules, Contract
Procedure Rules and delivery of the Council’s objectives. In providing this
assurance, Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers were asked
to identify any material issues where they consider the controls are not
adequate or are absent. In providing such assurance statements it is
accepted that Managers can only be expected to give reasonable
assurance for their service area of activity and not a full guarantee.
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Internal Audit - The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) defines
Internal Audit as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.” Internal Audit produces
an annual report that gives a summary of its work and provides an
independent and objective opinion on the authority’s activities. The annual
report and the work of Internal Audit have been used to inform the AGS. A
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit has been
undertaken to ensure that reliance can be placed on the work of internal
audit and its contribution to the AGS.



Risk Management – the Council’s strategic risk register details those
issues considered to be a risk which may prevent the Council from
achieving its corporate objectives and outlines the controls in place to
mitigate those risks. This source of assurance has been used to inform the
AGS.



External Audit and Other Review Agencies – assurance can be taken from
the work of external bodies such as the Council’s external auditors. Work
undertaken by the external auditors has been used to inform the Annual
Governance Statement.

8.3

As a corporate document the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and
Councillors of the authority. It is essential that there is a buy-in at the top level
of the organisation; otherwise there is a risk that the preparation of the AGS is
not perceived as the important task that it is by managers and other staff. If the
work is delegated to a single officer it is likely to dilute the statement’s
significance.

8.4

At the centre of the production of the 2017/18 statement is a Corporate
Governance Management Group who are given ultimate responsibility for
drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence and this
group has been established for a number of years. Each member of the group
has supplied assurances and evidence to support the various elements of the
AGS and action points to address weaknesses, some of which are significant
and warrant specific mention in the AGS itself, have been drawn up.

9.

The Statement

9.1

The assurances and evidence have been evaluated and the AGS, prepared in
accordance with recommended guidance, is attached as Appendix 2. The
statement is structured as follows: 



An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound
system of governance;
the purpose of the governance framework;
the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the
governance arrangements;
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9.2

the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the governance framework;
the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions
taken or proposed to address these issues.

In compiling an AGS, issues that are considered to fall short of the expected
standards (whether or not set out in the organisation’s local code of corporate
governance) could arise. In this case a decision needs to be made about how
significant the issue is and whether or not it needs to be commented on in the
Statement. It is not possible to give a single definition as to what constitutes a
“significant governance issue” and judgement has to be exercised.
Judgements are therefore based on the following factors:






the issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal
objective;
the issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another
service area;
the issue has led to a material impact on the accounts;
the Audit Manager has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in the
Internal Audit Annual Report;
the issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has the
potential to seriously damage the reputation of the Council;
the issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial
Officer and/or Monitoring Officer.

9.3

The 2016/17 AGS contained three significant internal control issues which
have not been fully addressed during the year as they are still ongoing and
they are therefore included again within the 2017/18 AGS as significant
issues.

9.4

The table below details the significant governance issue that remains at the
end of 2017/18 together with the action that was and is being taken to address
this issue:
Governance Issue
The implications of the
central government reforms
of housing finance.

Action taken during
2017/18
 A number of financial
savings/efficiencies
have been identified and
incorporated into the
latest revision of the
business plan.
 The Housing Revenue
Account Business Plan
Working
Group
has
developed a programme
of work to ensure a
balanced
Housing
Revenue
Account
business plan.
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Continuing Action


The outstanding work
relates
to
the
assessment of stock
condition.
A
100%
survey was completed
during the year and the
results are being used to
develop a smooth 30
year
programme
of
investment within the
resources available.

Governance Issue
The significant investment
requirements for a number
of the Council’s non-housing
properties.

There is an imminent
change in the operation
model for the Council’s
waste
collection,
street
cleansing
and
grounds
maintenance services.

Action taken during
2017/18
 The
Council
has
continued to implement
the
investment
programme to ensure its
assets remain fit for
purpose. Work on the
Pavilion
Gardens
Octagon and the Opera
House
have
been
substantially completed
during the year and work
on Glossop Halls will
commence soon.
 The
new
‘teckal’
company established to
deliver the services has
been developed and the
initial
phase
implemented which saw
the
Council’s
waste
Collection
Service
transfer in August 2017.

Continuing Action


A strategic plan covering
all of the Council’s
assets is continuing to
be
implemented
to
ensure its assets remain
fit for purpose.



The
new
company
arrangements
will
continue
to
be
developed
and
implemented.

9.5

The significant issues identified in the 2017/18 AGS highlight weaknesses in
the Council’s governance framework. If these issues are not addressed then
the Council could be facing a range of risks including, in a worst case
scenario, breaches of legislation, breaches of internal procedures/guidelines,
financial losses, insurance claims, etc. The actions identified for each
significant issue will, if implemented, minimise the risks faced by the Council.
No system of review can give full assurance that all risks have been minimised
and all controls have been operating effectively throughout the year, only
reasonable assurance can be given.

9.6

Progress in addressing the governance issues identified and outlined during
the AGS assurance gathering process, both significant and non-significant,
and their required actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance
Management Group during the following financial year and reported to the
Audit & Regulatory Committee.
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APPENDIX 1
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FRAMEWORK

Annual Governance
Statement

Framework - Key documents/process guidelines
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Performance management
Business strategy and planning process
Budget and budgetary control
Local code of corporate governance
Project management/ Risk Management / counter Fraud Policy
Ethical Governance
Policies, procedures, codes of conduct
Partnership protocol
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Performance
Management &
Data Quality

Corporate Group with
responsibility for drafting
AGS evaluate assurances
and supporting evidence

Authority &
Directorate Policies,
Business Plans and
Risk Registers

Risk
Management

Legal and
Regulatory
Assurance

Approval by Committee or by members
of body meeting as a whole

Members’
assurance

Assurances by
directors/service
heads

Other sources of
assurance
(including thirdparty)

Ongoing assurance on adequacy and
effectiveness of controls over key
risks

Review of the effectiveness of
the system of
Internal Audit

Financial
control
assurance

Internal Audit

External Audit
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APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017-18
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
High Peak Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. High Peak Borough Council also
has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, High Peak Borough Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
High Peak Borough Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government. A copy of the code is on our website at www.highpeak.gov.uk or can be
obtained from the Executive Director & Monitoring Officer. This statement explains how High Peak
Borough Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and
Audit (England) Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1)(b), which requires all relevant authorities to
prepare an annual governance statement.
THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which
the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with
and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services
and value for money.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of High Peak Borough Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place at High Peak Borough Council for the year ended 31
March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.
THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
High Peak Borough Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance in accordance
with the core principles of good governance outlined within the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.
There are seven core principles of good governance identified in the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 as follows:
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Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting
the rule of law.
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits.
Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended
outcomes.
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals
within it.
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management.
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective
accountability.

Further detail of how the High Peak Borough Council’s governance framework supports the
achievement of these core principles and their related sub-principles is outlined in the Council’s
Code of Corporate Governance.
Where significant governance issues are identified they are clearly highlighted in this statement
together with actions that are taken during the year and future actions proposed to minimise the
risks to the Council. Progress in addressing significant governance issues identified and their
required actions are monitored by the Corporate Governance Management Group during the
following financial year and reported to the Audit & Regulatory Committee.
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
High Peak Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of
Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other
review agencies and inspectorates.
The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework is ongoing throughout the year and includes:


the authority;
 The ongoing review of the Council’s Constitution by Councillors and Senior Officers of the
Council via the Constitution Sub Committee.
 The ongoing review of existing corporate policies and production and approval of new or
revised policies and procedures in accordance with best practice.
 The Annual Governance Statement process incorporates a review of the local Code of
Corporate Governance against CIPFA/SOLACE best practice to ensure that the Council’s
approach to corporate governance is both adequate and effective in practice.



the executive;
 The continued operation of clear policy and decision making through the Executive and
Regulatory Committees.

Page 42



the audit committee/overview and scrutiny committees/risk management committee;
 The Audit & Regulatory Committee’s composition and terms of reference are based upon
CIPFA guidance and include reviewing the work of the Internal Audit service and any
implications arising from their findings and opinion on the adequacy of internal controls and
the adequacy of policies and practices to ensure compliance with statutory and other
guidance. The Committee are also responsible for overseeing production of the Council’s
Annual Governance Statement, and to review and recommend/approve its adoption as
necessary.
 Formal reporting mechanisms to councillors to review and monitor the work of the Internal
Audit Service through quarterly reports to Audit & Regulatory Committee, including an
annual report to Audit & Regulatory Committee containing an opinion statement on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. For
2017/18, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s governance
arrangements including risk management and systems of internal control were operating
adequately and effectively.
 The continued development and embedding of a risk management culture within the
Council driven by the corporate Risk Management Group including reviewing the Council’s
risk register and associated action plans and ensuring that appropriate management action
is taken to minimise / eliminate risk. Risk Management updates are reported to the Audit &
Regulatory Committee and the Risk Management Strategy is reviewed biennially.
 The Select Committees review decisions made by the Executive and areas of concern and
also fulfil a policy development role. Councillors can “call-in” a decision that has been made
by the Executive when they consider the decision is not in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.



the Standards Committee;
 The Committee is responsible for the ethical framework of the Council, working closely with
the monitoring officer. The terms of reference include advising councillors on conduct
issues and ensuring the promotion and maintenance of the highest standards of conduct by
elected and co-opted members of the Council.



chief financial officer;
 The CFO is a key member of the “Alliance Leadership Team” (ALT) and “Alliance
Management Team” (AMT), which are the most senior officer bodies charged with the
leadership of the Council. That role includes helping to develop and implement strategy and
to resource and deliver the Council’s strategic objectives sustainably and in the public
interest.
 The CFO is actively involved in and able to bring influence to bear on, all material business
decisions to ensure the immediate and longer term implications, opportunities and risks are
considered, and alignment with the Council’s overall financial strategy achieved.
 High Peak Borough Councils financial management arrangements conform to the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer
in Local Government.



internal audit;
 Internal Audit review services and functions based on a risk assessed audit plan, in order to
provide an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
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internal control. Audit reports detailing the findings of each review are issued to Heads of
Service, Service Managers, the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer and where
appropriate, the Executive Director & Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive.
 Audit recommendations for improvements require management agreement, and
implementation is monitored and escalated in accordance with formally agreed escalation
procedures. Regular updates on audit recommendation agreement and implementation are
reported to the Audit & Regulatory Committee.
 The Authority’s internal audit arrangements conform to the requirements of the CIPFA
Statement of the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. Internal Audit operates in accordance
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The service is subject to regular review by
the Council’s External Auditors who place reliance on their work. An annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal audit is also undertaken and an independent external
review previously concluded that the internal audit provision within the Council complies
with the expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.


other explicit review/assurance mechanisms;
 The Council operates a performance framework which is aligned to the Council’s four key
aims and measures performance against indicators and actions that are focused on the
delivery of corporate objectives.
 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer produces quarterly and annual financial
reports which indicate financial performance against forecasts.
 Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers complete and sign annual Managers
Assurance Statements confirming their arrangements for ensuring data quality and the
existence, operation and effectiveness of controls within the service areas for which they
are responsible
 External review of the Council’s internal control environment by the external auditors Grant
Thornton, including a thorough review of internal audit’s work.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit & Regulatory Committee, and that the arrangements continue
to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas already
addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new actions planned are outlined below.
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SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
During the 2017/18 financial year three significant governance issues have been identified. These
are detailed in the table below together with the action that was and is being taken to address the
issue:
Governance Issue

Action taken during

Continuing Action

2017/18
The implications of the central
government reforms of housing
finance.





The
significant
investment
requirements for a number of the
Council’s non-housing properties.



There is an imminent change in
the operation model for the
Council’s waste collection, street
cleansing
and
grounds
maintenance services.



A
number
of
financial
savings/efficiencies
have
been
identified
and
incorporated into the latest
revision of the business plan.
The
Housing
Revenue
Account
Business
Plan
Working
Group
has
developed a programme of
work to ensure a balanced
Housing Revenue Account
business plan.
The Council has continued to
implement the investment
programme to ensure its
assets remain fit for purpose.
Work
on
the
Pavilion
Gardens Octagon and the
Opera House have been
substantially
completed
during the year and work on
Glossop Halls will commence
soon.
The new ‘teckal’ company
established to deliver the
services has been developed
and
the
initial
phase
implemented which saw the
Council’s waste Collection
Service transfer in August
2017.



The outstanding work relates
to the assessment of stock
condition. A 100% survey
was completed during the
year and the results are
being used to develop a
smooth 30 year programme
of investment within the
resources available.



A strategic plan covering all
of the Council’s assets is
continuing to be implemented
to ensure its assets remain fit
for purpose.



The
new
company
arrangements will continue to
be
developed
and
implemented.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance
our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.
Signed:
……………………………………………………

…………………………

Councillor Tony Ashton
Leader

Date

……………………………………………………

…………………………

Simon W Baker B.Ed, MBA, MISPAL
Chief Executive

Date

on behalf of High Peak Borough Council
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Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

Statement of Accounts 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Portfolio Holder for
Finance and Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager
Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer
(Financial Reporting)
Appendix A: High Peak Draft Statement of Accounts (separate document)
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1281/Annual-statement-of-accounts
WARDS INVOLVED:
Non-specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Statement of Accounts (via weblink)
Appendix B Attached: Chief Finance Officer Review of Accounts
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of the report is to allow for scutiny of the Statement of Accounts
2017/18 in compliance with the legislative provisions in relation to financial
reporting and the Council’s commitment to transparency and accountability in
the stewardship of public funds.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the committee approve the audited Statement of
Accounts 2017-18.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements. These,
prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code of Practice’) and
based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), are required to
present ‘a true and fair view’ of the financial position of the Council at the
accounting date (period ended 31st March 2018).
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3.2

Part 2, Section 8(2) of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011
state that the Chief Finance Officer signs the Statement of Accounts by 31st
May each year certifying that the accounts represent a ‘true and fair view’ of
the Authority’s financial position.

3.3

The committee is requested to approve the audited Statement of Accounts
2017/18 (see Appendix A). In doing so, the Chair of the Audit & Regulatory
Committee will sign the accounts at this meeting.

3.4

By formally approving the Accounts, the Audit & Regulatory Committee will be
demonstrating their confidence in the responsible financial officer (Corporate
Director & Chief Finance Officer) and in the process by which the Statement
of Accounts has been prepared. The accounts have been externally audited
by Grant Thornton and they will set out their opinion and findings within the
Audit Findings Report presented as part of this meeting.

3.5

In order to assist the committee with their scrutiny role, a training session was
delivered by Capita Asset Solutions (the Authority’s treasury management
and financial technical support advisor) on 21st July 2015 which included a
session relating to the Statement of Accounts.

3.6

To further aid the committee, Appendix B provides the Chief Finance Officer
review that was undertaken prior to the Statement of Accounts being signed
on the 31st May 2018, which challenges some of the more material financial
movements compared to the previous year and requests further clarification
on certain areas.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The preparation of the Statement of Accounts is dictated by legislation. As
such it is not directly linked to a corporate priority, although the Council is
firmly committed to the guiding principle of transparency and accountability in
the stewardship of public funds.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

The Statement of Accounts is primarily a record of fact. Areas of discretion
are treated in accordance with guidance and professional judgement.
Consequently there are no real options to consider.

5.2

The Statement of Accounts has been subject to external audit by Grant
Thornton.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
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None
6.3

Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and
Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are a substantial number of financial considerations throughout the
Statement of Accounts.

6.5

Legal
There are a number of legal requirements in respect of financial reporting that
the Council is required to comply with, which are detailed in the appropriate
sections within the Statement of Accounts.

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 require the Statement of Accounts
and supporting documents to be made available for public inspection for 20
full working days prior to the ‘appointed date for exercise of public rights’.
These have been made available at Buxton Town Hall, Buxton, from 4th June
2018 until 13th July 2018 in full compliance with this requirement.

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of areas of risk embedded throughout the Statement of
Accounts. These have been individually addressed and treated in accordance
with guidance and professional judgement.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Background Papers

Location

Contacts

2017/18 Closure of Accounts files
(various)

Joint Finance Team,
Moorlands House, Leek

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Stephen Robinson
Principal Finance Officer
(Financial Reporting)
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4194
Sharon Hall
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4246
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APPENDIX B

High Peak Borough Council
Statement of Accounts 2017/18
Chief Finance Officer Review
1. Please provide the most significant reasons for the 2017/18 operating surplus of
£1,571,619
As reported within the Quarter Four (Provisional Outturn) Financial Report: there
were nine significant underspends on the General Fund Revenue Account:
-

-

-

-

-

ICT (£65,557 underspend); savings have accrued from lower than expected
spend across a range of service activities (telephony, system upgrades,
consultancy, ad-hoc projects).
Planning Applications (£122,761 underspend): Robust income levels
outstripped some smaller areas of budgetary pressure. The positive position
was driven by a relatively small number of applications received for significantly
large development sites.
Customer Services (£58,424 underspend); Spend against budgets across the
service were below expectations. Highlights were savings of £24,000 and
£14,000 respectively against the outgoing post and photocopier budgets.
Electoral Services (£60,636 underspend): The service budgets to make an
annual contribution in to an earmarked reserve in order to smooth the costs of
the council’s elections over the term of the administration. The budgeted
underspend to fund this contribution for 2017/18 is £40,000. A further £20,000
underspend resulted from the costs relating to individual elector registration
being below the level of funding received from central government..
Housing Strategy (£98,859 underspend): Some £94,000 in Government
grants were received in year to support actions to be taken by the Authority in
response to the Homelessness Reduction Act. As the majority of initiatives
identified under the Authority’s Homeless Strategy could not progress in 2017/18
it was necessary to carry forward a significant proportion of this funding.
Corporate Finance (£147,720 underspend): Revenue from the Borough’s
spring water franchise was some £27,000 below expectations owing to a
reported fall in demand for bottled water. The Authority however benefited from a
£15,000 reduction in external audit fees. Corporate Finance records the
Authority’s performance against its efficiency savings target and the
consolidation of savings against corporate budgets such as for employee costs.
This cashing-up exercise has been completed and the saving target for the year
was achieved. In addition significant savings have accrued against corporate
staff and inflation contingency budgets. The net impact of staff turnover and
vacancies has contributed £102,000 while a saving of £55,000 has accrued from
lower than anticipated inflationary pressures.
Waste Collection (£56,090 underspend); the main drivers behind a £129,000
underspend were better than expected revenues against income streams from
bin sales and trade waste, combined with reduced costs in areas such as
disposal charges. This was offset by a net £59,000 overspend against the
budgeted costs relating to Alliance Environmental Services (AES). Spend
pressures of some £98,000 in regard to additional vehicle costs and contingency
items arising during the initiation phase of AES are offset by a £39,000 credit
accruing to the Council from this joint operation’s trading performance in year.
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-

-

Leisure Services (£49,404 underspend); Leisure Centres have achieved a
£16,000 underspend on their repairs budget as well as benefiting from £8,000
additional income. A further £16,000 saving was contributed as a result of the
finalisation of the Authority’s Leisure Development Delivery Strategy in July
being too late for many of the initiatives therein to be progressed in 2017/18.
Horticulture (£60,149 underspend); Robust levels of income from internments,
and grave space sales gave rise to a net £40,000 surplus for Cemeteries after
additional repair costs had been taken into account. A further £15,000
contribution to Horticulture’s overall underspend arose out of the tree works
budget. Spend has been postponed because of the relevant contractors building
up s backlog of work.

The actual level of Funding achieved in the year was £1,000,872 above the
original estimate owing to variances across the following income streams;
Grants (£36,372):
- The Council benefited from a receipt of £36,372 in Transition Grant that had not
been anticipated for the year. This Government grant was towards meeting
shortfalls in income arising as Councils moved from a regime of central funding
to raising the majority of their income locally.
Business Rates Retention (£984,970):
- An increase of £130,520 in the level of retained business rates owing to
increases in business rates income. This was not assumed in the budget
because of uncertainties surrounding the 2017 revaluation and appeals
provision.
- Following new information provided by the Valuation Office Agency, the DCLG
has adjusted the tariff payable on business rates for the year for all Councils.
This has had a negative effect for this Council and decreases the level of
retained business rates by £19,190.
- An increase of £527,030 resulting from S31 grants to fund the new reliefs not
known at the budget setting stage for Local Discretionary Relief, Supporting
Small Businesses, Pub Relief and the change in thresholds on Small Business
Rate Relief. These grants are credited to the General Fund in the year but the
associated reliefs have the opposite effect of increasing the Collection Fund
deficit to be distributed in the following year.
- The levy payable, on business rates retention, to the pool is reduced by
£193,480. In addition to the effect of awarding additional reliefs as described
above, the level of business rates income collectable has fallen following the
resolution of appeals relating to purpose built doctors surgeries; and an increase
in the level of provision required overall for both the existing appeals and the
assumed reduction in RV on current year liabilities which will result from appeals
in future years.
- The gain as a member of the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool has been
increased from £200,000 to £353,130. This amount is dependent each year
upon the performance of every pool member. Therefore this is still a draft figure
until each member has certified their NNDR3 returns at the end of July 2018.
2. Why has there been a £0.75 million movement in reserves from General Fund
Contingency to the Capital Support reserve?
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A report was approved by Council on 3rd May which provided details of an options
appraisal that had been undertaken on the procurement of refuse freighters. The
most cost effective option being for the Council to direct purchase – which was
therefore recommended and subsequently the estimated purchase costs added to
the capital programme. Therefore, £0.75 million has been allocated to the
earmarked reserve set aside to fund capital expenditure and reduce the overall cost
of borrowing associated with acquiring the vehicles required by Alliance Environment
Services Limited.
3. Please provide a year on year comparison of the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet and Collection Fund identifying significant
variances. For items highlighted in yellow, please provide an explanation of the
movement.
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:
Variance (2017-18 compared to 2016-17)

CIES Variance Analysis

Gross Expenditure

Gross Income

£000
Alliance Management
78
Audit
10
ICT
(60)
Human Resources
(8)
Member Services
(9)
Property Services
665
Benefits
(616)
Planning Applications
(16)
Building Control
(9)
Customer Services
(75)
Legal Services
(15)
Electoral Services
35
Licensing & Land Charges
(29)
Regeneration
128
Communities & Cultural
(21)
Housing Strategy
1
Transformation
6
Community Safety & Enforcement
(19)
Finance & Procurement
155
Coporate Finance
8
Waste Collection
717
Street Scene
(36)
Leisure Services
129
Horticulture
4
Visitor Services
(177)
Environmental Health
(42)
Local Authority Housing (HRA)
35,955
Cost Of Services
580
Other Operating Exepnditure
(435)
Financing & Investment Income & Exp
(407)
Taxation & non-specific Grant
0
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services
(Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets
Remeasurement of the net defined peniosn benefit liability

£000

Net Expenditure
£000

0
0
(16)
0
0
1
886
(45)
16
(1)
(11)
(2)
40
8
89
68
0
6
53
30
(459)
(12)
(9)
(25)
228
(91)
216
(807)
(29)
356
383

78
10
(76)
(8)
(9)
666
270
(61)
7
(76)
(26)
33
11
136
68
69
6
(13)
208
38
258
(48)
120
(21)
51
(133)
36,171
(227)
(464)
(51)
383
(359)
(4,061)
(10,495)
(14,556)
(14,915)
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Property Services: net cost of service increased by £666k between 2016/17 and
2017/18 - 2017/18 has seen a £615k increase in Nominal charges (Pensions up £70k
Capital up £545k)
Benefits: Expenditure and Income down £616k and £886k respectively between
2016/17 and 2017/18 - reflects the continuing trend of less benefits being paid out as
entitlement is reduced and levels of employment increase. As income is based on
expenditure it too has reduced by a similar amount, leaving net consistent between years.
Waste Collection: net cost of service increased by £258k between 2016/17 and
2017/18 - (£717k increase in expenditure offset by a £459k increase in income). 2017/18
has seen a £130k increase in Nominal charges (majority Capital).
Housing Revenue Account: net cost of service increased by £36.171m between
2016/17 and 2017/18 - significantly different nominal charges have been credited to each
year. 2016/17 included a £39m reversal of valuation gain adjustment following a change to
the discount factor applied to social housing stock valuations in that year.
Other Operating Expenditure: gross expenditure decreased by £435k between
2016/17 and 2017/18 - The major contributor was the profit and loss on sale of assets which
has decreased from £2.691m to £2.386m between years reflecting the disposals made. The
other contribution being a reduction of £178k in the Housing Pool contribution made to
Central Government.
Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure: gross expenditure decreased by
£407k between 2016/17 and 2017/18 - the major contributor was a reduction in Interest
payable of £236k & Pension cost of £171k.
Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment: a £4,061k
increase in surplus is reported between years - upward revaluation of assets in year is
£4.775m greater than at last year's revaluations.
Remeasurement of the net defined pension benefit liability: a £10.495m reduction in
liability is shown - changes in pension liability and asset values give rise to this change in
the nominal accounting entries between years. These changes were in line with the
Actuary's assumptions for the year.

Balance Sheet:
Balance Sheet
Property, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets
Investment Properties
Intangible Assets
Long-term Debtors
TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS
Short-term Investments
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Cash & Cash Equivilents
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Short-term Borrowings
Short-term Creditors
Provisions
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term Borrowing
Pensions Liability
Deferred Liabilities
Grant Receipts in Advance - Capital
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL NET ASSETS
Useable Reserves
Unusable Reserves
TOTAL RESERVES

Variance 2017/18
compared to
2016/17
10,288
0
(30)
(13)
(6)
10,239
3,018
31
2,311
(2,301)
3,059
46
(5,050)
(626)
(107)
(5,737)
5,050
2,143
106
(185)
7,114
14,675
3,700
11,005
14,705
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Property, Plant and Equipment: there has been a £10.288m increase in carrying value
– The main increases are around £6m in spend adding value to the council’s asset base
plus a further £6m addition from revised valuations. These upward moves are offset by the
effect of asset derecognitions and depreciation.
Short Term Investments: there has been a £3.018m increase between years / Cash
and Cash Equivalent: there has been a decrease of £2.3m between years. – where
investments are shown on the Balance Sheet is dictated by there classification as short or
long term, the latter being any that will mature beyond 12 months of the year end. The
overall increase between years in the level of Cash and Investments was only £717k.
Short Term Debtors: there has been a £2.311m increase between years – mainly the
impact on the year end collection fund deficit of Government changes to the in-year reliefs
applied to Business Rates (see query 12 below).
Short and Long Term Borrowing has a net movement of 0: where borrowings are
shown on the Balance Sheet is dictated by there classification as short or long term, the
latter being any that will mature beyond 12 months of the year end. This has required a
reclassification of £5.050m from Long to Short at the year end.
Pension Liability: there has been a £2.143m decrease between years. – see the
response to query 4 below.
Usable Reserves: there has been a £3.7m increase between years. – Note 11 in the
Statements shows the movement, on the individual accounts, resulting from the in year
operating surpluses generated on General Fund and Housing Revenue activities.
Unusable Reserves: there has been a £11.005m increase between years. – Note 12 in
the Statements shows the movement, on the individual accounts making up the council’s
unusable reserves. The Revaluation Reserve is responsible for the majority of the increase
as it includes a net £9.891m revaluation of non-current assets.

Collection Fund:
Variance 2017-18 compared to 2016/17
Council Tax
Business Rates
Total
£000
£000
£000

Collection Fund
Income
Income due form Business Rates Payers
Transitional Protection Payments for Business Rates
Income due from Council Tax Payers
Total Income
Expenditure
Preceptors
Central Government
Derbyshire County Council
Derbyshire Police Authority
Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority
High Peak B.C.

(2,071)
(2,071)

Distribution of Previous Year Surplus / (Deficit)
Central Government
Derbyshire County Council
Derbyshire Police Authority
Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority
High Peak B.C.
Charges to the Collection Fund
Transitional Protection Payments for Business Rates
Write offs of Uncollectable Amounts
Increase/Decrease in Impairment Allowance
Refunds charged to provision for appeals
Increase/decrease in provision for appeals
Cost of collection allowance
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1,218
(1,571)
(353)

1,786
165
66
179

1,271
229
25
1,017

52
6
2
8

765
138
0
15
612

(66)
126

(2)
100
1
(1,149)
1,526
0

(2,424)

4,738

1598

536

-

-

-

-

Transitional Protection Payment for Business Rates Payers: this is a new entry in
2017/18 of £1.571m. These Transitional protection payments are paid to the authority by
Central Government to compensate the billing authority for the net income foregone through
the transitional relief scheme which is designed to phase the increases/ decreases in
ratepayers’ bills following the 2017 revaluation. The scheme for the 2010 list had finished by
the 2016/17 year so the only payments to/from the authority related to backdated ratepayer
account adjustments, whereas 2017/18 was the first year of the 2017 list following the
revaluation so the scheme has started again.
Central Government Business Rates Precept: this has increased by £1,.71m between
years. The Government's % share of the Business Rates has not changed but overall
NNDR income has increased following the 2017 revaluation.
Derbyshire County Council Tax Precept: this has increased by £1.786m between
years. Growth in the Council tax precept between years reflects both expansion of the
taxbase plus a 3.99% increase in the individual charges levied by the County.
High Peak BC Business Rates: this has increased by £1.018m between years. The
Council’s % share of the Business Rates has not changed but overall NNDR income has
increased following the 2017 revaluation.
Central Government & High Peak BC Business Rates Surplus: this has reduced by
£765k and £612K respectively - an overall deficit of £1.5million was distributed in 2016/17
whereas the 2017/18 distribution was a surplus of £64k which was set in January 2017
based on the forecast outturn for 2016/17. At that time it was anticipated that the deficit had
been fully distributed and the outturn would only produce a small surplus. Central
Government’s share of this is 50% and High Peak BC’s share is 40%.
Business Rates Refunds charges to provision for appeals: this has increased by
£1.149m - the rate at which appeals on the 2010 list were heard increased in 2017/18
leading to a greater number and value of refunds on those hereditaments which were
included in the provision.
Increase in provision for appeals: this has increased by £1.526m - it incorporates an
expectation that there will be RV reductions relating to 2017/18 demands over the life of the
2017 list following revaluation on 1st April 2017.

4. The overall net worth of the Authority has increased from £110.39m to £125.1m – a
difference of £14.71m (see balance sheet) Three of the significant reasons for this
appears to be an increase long-term assets (increase of £10.3m), increase in
Investments (increase of £10.3m) offset by a reduction in net current assets
(reduction of £7.9m). Could you just provide some explanation around this?
The revised table below is now in the Statements which actually shows that there
has been minimal change in Cash and Investments between years. Instead the
major reasons for the overall change in net worth are changes in carrying value of
non-current assets and pension liability (see below)
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Non-current Assets – all the property plant and equipment owned by the
Authority are professionally valued on a five year rolling cycle to ensure that their
carrying value on the Balance Sheet reflects an up-to-date position. At the end
of 2017/18 the valuation process has resulted in a cumulative increase in the
carrying value of the Authority’s properties of some £10million.

-

Pension Liability – under financial accounting regulations the Authority’s Balance
Sheet must show the cumulative net value of its pension scheme if all the assets
and liabilities became realisable or payable on the 31st March. While in reality
pension schemes continue over generations this snap shot measurement draws
attention to any underlying long term strengths or weaknesses. The
measurements applied to the Council’s scheme at the end of 2017/18 reduced
the liability reported on the Balance Sheet by £2.14million to £43.45million. The
value of the pension as reported on the Balance Sheet is a significant liability for
the Council. However because this liability only falls due over the long term,
measures have been put in place that ensure the Authority’s continuing financial
viability. At a national level Government has altered future scheme benefits and
entitlements while locally both Council and employee contributions have
increased.

5. As per Note 1c (Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature):EXPENDITURE:- Employee expenses has increased by £1.5m from 2016/17 to
2017/18 – which goes against recent trends of employee costs reducing as a result
of efficiency/ service review savings – why the increase?
2017/18 saw Alliance Environmental Services (AES) replace Veolia as provider of
the Authority’s Waste Collection services. As an external contractor Veolia’s cost to
the Council was recorded as a net management fee within Other Service Expenses
in the analysis. AES however is a joint operation and as such its activities have to
be recorded gross across all relevant categories, including in 2017/18 £760k as staff.
Unfortunately there was a classification error in the 2016/17 analysis that wrongly
included £828k in Other Service Expenses that should have been Employees.
INCOME:- Overall income receipts have decreased by £1.7million – with a
£1.4million reduction in Government grant funding – what does this relate to?
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Around £1.1m of this reduction relates to a fall in grant income credited to individual
services. Of this some £800k is a reduction in Housing Benefit Subsidy that mirrors
a corresponding fall in the level of benefits that were paid out. There were also
£100,000 reductions in grant income accruing to the Communities and Finance
services.
The remaining £600,000 relates to a reduction in the level of direct government
funding of local authorities, through Revenue Support Grant and New Homes Bonus,
with the move to retained business rates.
Within Fees and Charges income, there has been a £0.46million increase in income
generated by the Waste service (see note 1d) – why is this?
While there has been some growth in price and volume of the services provided, the
majority of the increase is down to inclusion of £400,000 of income generated within
AES whose activities, as a joint operation, must be recorded gross within the
council’s accounts.
6. The Officer Remuneration note (note 2c) shows the split of senior staff salary costs
between HPBC and SMDC – not all of them are split on a 50:50 basis, with some
having a higher charge to HPBC, some a higher charge to SMDC. What is the basis
for this?
After the service review process had been completed, a review of the staff
percentage split of time was undertaken to ensure this was as accurate as possible.
Therefore, roles are split according to where, in reality, time is focused – which is
different for each role dependent on the make up of the service area. The splits also
take into account time spent on Housing Revenue Accounts (HRA) related tasks
associated with HPBC.
7. As per the balance sheet, short-term Investments and cash and cash equivalents
totalled £14.4million as at 31st March 2018. However, useable reserves totalled
£23.8million - could you explain the difference of £9.4million as useable reserves are
funds available for investment.
Maturities of long-term external debt to the total of £9.7m during 2016/17 have not
since been refinanced, instead using internal borrowing to fund this balance reducing
the amount available for external investments. Internal borrowing is temporary by
nature, it does not reduce the reserve balances. Capital expenditure during 2017/18
has created a borrowing requirement of £2.6m meaning that the overall borrowing
requirement of the Council is £7.2m under-borrowed at the balance sheet date. The
remaining variance of £2.2m is due to the working capital at the balance sheet date.
8. Overall borrowing (short-term and long-term) on the Balance Sheet has remained
consistent at just over £72.2million. However, the capital financing requirement
(note 7e) is £79.3million – this relates to capital expenditure which has not been
funded (so the Council’s underlying need to borrow). If external borrowing is
£72.2m, how is the remaining £7.1m funded currently?
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This balance is internally borrowed – the effect of this is further explained as part of the
response to question 7 and the origin of the figures quoted is set out here:
The table below restates the Balance Sheet in such a way as to highlight;
- Capital Finance / Borrowing Requirement
- External Borrowing
- therefore Under borrowing
- Amounts available to invest
(23,496)
- invested externally
14,442
- therefore invested internally
- balance being the Council’s Working Capital

79,018
(71,880)
7,138

(9,074)
(1,936)

Table: Balance Sheet presented so as to highlight use and level of internal borrowing.
Capital Financing Requirement
Property Plant & Equipment
Investment properties
Intangible Assets
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
CFR (as per Prudential Code)
Finance Lease Liability
Underlying Borrowing Requirement

226,152
1,043
44
(34,413)
(113,521)
79,305
(287)
79,018

External Borrowing
Short Term
Long Term
TOTAL External Borrowing (Principal)

(5,000)
(66,880)
(71,880)

Under (Over) Borrowing?

7,138

Reserves / Balances
General Fund Balance
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Housing Revenue Account
Earmarked reserves / other balances
Capital Receipts Reserve
Provisions (Exc any accumulated absences)
Capital Grants Unapplied
Amount Available for Investment

7,138

(3,273)
849
(13,175)
(3,835)
(3,136)
(508)
(418)
(23,496)

Investments
Short Term
Cash & Cash Equivalents - in hand
Cash & Cash Equivalents - overdrawn
TOTAL Investments

7,150
7,272
0
14,422

(internal investments)

(9,074)

Working Capital
Debtors
Creditors
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance
Inventories / WIP
NET Working Capital Deficit (Surplus)

6,186
(6,422)
(273)
99
(410)

(9,074)
(1,936)

(410)

Other
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
Deferred Capital receipts
Balance Long Term debtors
Other Long Term Working Capital

2,278
(1)
69
2,346

2,346

TOTAL Working Capital Deficit

1,936

1,936
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9. Note 7a details total ‘additions’ in year as £5.8 million – however, note 7e states that
capital expenditure incurred in the year was £6.47m - the £584,000 difference
relating to ‘Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute’ – why is this
not classed as an ‘addition’?
Under statute Councils can incur capital expenditure against assets which they do
not own and are not on Balance Sheet. The main element of spend in this category
is on Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) (grants given to third parties for major
adaptions to their homes). Some £307k of DFG was awarded in 2017-18. The
balance of grants falling in this category were made in support of affordable housing
projects.
10. Note 7a details £1.26million in disposals during the year – what do these relate to?
This represents the writing out of the carrying value of the 25 council houses sold in
the year.
11. Has the Council let new operating leases during 2017/18 (where the Council is the
lessor) as the future minimum lease payments receivable has increased from
£3.7million as at 31st March 2017 to £4.2 million as at 31st March 2018?
No new operating leases but a number of leases have been renewed in 2017/18 with
the renegotiated rental levels rising in line with market pressures.
12. In simple terms – can you explain what note 6 is showing the reader?
The Statement of Accounts are produced in accordance with statutory guidance as
to what is reported in each individual Statement. Two underlying principles to this
guidance are;
-

-

Full Costing (Accounting Basis) – the figures reported in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) should include all elements of cost
not just cash backed transactions such as payment of suppliers and income
received from clients. So, for instance, nominal charges are made to services
for the use of assets such as buildings or for the liability to pay the future
pensions of their staff.
Fair Charging (Funding Basis) – those paying for the services (through
taxation or fees and charges) should only have to cover those costs
considered legitimately chargeable to the accounting period. So while the
nominal charges in relation to the use of assets or pension liability reflect a
longer term commitment the actual costs chargeable to the year should only
record cash backed transactions.

In order to satisfy these competing principles the Statements include a mechanism
that records the nominal charges against services in the CIES and then replaces
them with the amounts considered legitimately chargeable to the year. The
Authority’s Balance Sheet includes a number of Unusable Reserve Accounts that
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hold the long term liability for the nominal charges. These accounts are used to
record and carry forward the cumulative difference between the nominal charges
made to services and the actual amounts. The Movement in Reserves Statement
summarises and Note 6 details the transactions moving between the CIES reported
outturn and the Unusable Reserves to replace nominal with actual.
13. There has been a significant increase in the year end ‘debtors’ figure – an increase
from £3.85million as at 31st March 2017, to £6.16million as at 31st March 2018. Can
you please detail the main differences please?
Three main areas showing an increase in their year end debtor balance are,
Government £1,050,000 ; Derbyshire County Council £600,000 ; Local Taxation
£300,000. The first two are as a result of the impact of Government’s in year
changes to the Business Rates regulations which created a year end deficit that is
collectable from the preceptors in proportion to their level of precept. The latter
reflects the effect of the Easter bank holidays this year which delayed into 18/19 the
credit into the council’s bank of the last direct debit run in March.
14. Can you explain why there has been a reduction in total income generated by the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) – as per the HRA income & Expenditure
Statement?
2017/18 was year 3 of the 4 year annual 1% reduction to be applied to dwelling rents
– as directed by Government, which accounts for the reduction in overall income.
15. Can you explain the overall deficit on the Collection Fund?
The Collection Fund is an account that the Council, as the billing authority for
council tax and business rates, has to maintain to record the difference between the
tax distributed and collectable in the year. By collectable we mean that it is based
on what should have been not what was collected i.e. it takes no account of arrears
and prepayments. It also records the amounts paid to all precepting authorities,
Central Government, County, Fire, Police, Borough and Parishes, in line with the
precepts set at the beginning of the financial year. The difference between these
precepts and the collectable amount is the surplus or deficit at the year end. This
surplus or deficit is estimated prior to the year-end and is then paid to or recovered
from all the preceptors in the following year.
The precepts were set against a predicted collectable amount in January 2017.
During 2017/18 the actual collectable amounts would have been affected by
changes in:
-

the number of taxable homes and premises
the granting or cessation of discounts or reliefs
changes in the banding of houses or rateable value of buildings
statutory changes such as the introduction of new reliefs and
discounts
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The Collection Fund is showing an overall deficit of £2.0m (£0.2m council tax surplus
and £2.2m business rates deficit) of which the Council’s share is £849k (£23k council
tax surplus and £872k business rates deficit).
While substantial in-year surpluses or deficits can arise from variations in the factors
listed above, the level of deficit generated for Business Rates reflects a particular
Government initiative.
Central Government introduced and extended a number of reliefs (e.g. Small
Business Rates Relief) reducing the amount collectable. This reduction in the
amount collectable effectively reduced the amount of cash the Council as the Billing
Authority could collect to pay the various preceptors. Government has therefore
issued a Section 31 grant to compensate for this reduced income. This grant has
been paid direct to each of the preceptors including the Borough. So while the
Borough is faced with making good a deficit on the BR collection fund, it has already
received the money to compensate for this through S31 grant. The grant is
accounted for in the General Fund and does not feature in the Collection Fund.
16. Are there any major risks to the authority indicated in the accounts? If so, how are
these being dealt with?
Narrative Report (page 2): touches upon the level of funding that is now raised
and retained locally as opposed to being provided by Central Government. This
makes us vulnerable to local economic factors.
Countered by robust budgetary control and the maintenance of adequate reserves
both earmarked to support particular activities and as a contingency against
unplanned changes in income and expenditure. Usable reserves have increased
from £20.14m to £23.84m, including at £3.3m a contingency reserve that is more
than double the value considered prudent.
Balance Sheet and Capital Notes (page 32 and page 58): lists the extensive
assets of the Authority. Assets such as these can become individual or collective
liabilities if not adequately maintained.
Countered by an Asset Management Plan that ensures capital resources are
focused on maintaining the structural integrity and value of property assets.
Pension Notes (page 50): highlights the pension liability of £43.4m, valuation of
which is based on the value of Corporate Bonds.
This risk to the medium/long term viability of the Authority is countered by measures
adopted by local government pension schemes to increase contributions and
reduce entitlements over the medium to long term.
Financial Instrument Notes (page 73): Include a comprehensive analysis of the
various risks around the value of all financial assets including cash, receivables and
investments.
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Countered by the Authority’s budgetary control and treasury management
procedures. Realistic budgeting is supported by robust risk adverse borrowing and
investment strategies.
Contingent Liabilities Note (page 81): Highlights a number of areas where there
may be a future call on the Council’s resources if certain actions or events
materialise.
These items are monitored as part of the Authority’s financial planning process.
Future budgets can if necessary be amended in response to any liability
materialising. There are operating reserves available to ameliorate the impact on
other services in any particular year.
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HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for
Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices attached:
Appendix A – Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1.

The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury
Management performance in 2017/18 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury
Management and generally accepted good practice.

2.

Recommendation

2.1.

That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2017/18 is recommended to Council
for approval.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management
activities for the year.

3.2

The Annual Treasury Management Report for 2017/18 considers the following
areas:

 The Treasury Management Strategy adopted for 2017/18 and the economic
environment during the year;
 The current treasury position, highlighting the Council’s borrowing and lending
position at the year end;
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 The Council’s capital expenditure, overall borrowing need and borrowing outturn




3.3

during 2017/18;
Performance measurements, which look at the returns achieved during the year
by the Council on its overall investments;
The Council’s investment portfolio, which sets out how and where the Council
has invested its money during the year;
The interest yield for 2017/18; and
Compliance with prudential indicators, showing the outturn against those
Indicators formally adopted in the 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy.

The main headlines include:

 Capital expenditure in 2017/18 totalled £6.5 million. This created a borrowing
requirement of £2.6 million wholly applicable to General Fund capital
expenditure.

 Total debt at 31st March 2018 amounted to £72 million including loans from

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), market loans, local authority loans and
finance lease arrangements.

 There were no loan maturities during the year; no new external borrowing took
place; nor was there any debt rescheduling.

 Overall borrowing costs were £45,000 underspent against the budget as
refinancing of maturing loans from the previous year and new borrowing was
anticipated during the year, whereas internal borrowing was used instead. This
was split between the General Fund (£30,000 overspend) and HRA (£75,000
underspend).

 The average daily investment during 2017/18 was £18.7 million invested with a

total of 10 institutions, yielding £92,249 in investment income. There was a
surplus achieved against the investment income budget of £27,529 as rates
improved following the return in the Bank of England Base Rate to 0.50% in
November 2017.

 The average return achieved by the Council on its investment portfolio for the
year was 0.49%, which compares favourably to short-term industry benchmarks.

 Year-end investments totalled £13.7 million all managed by the Council’s
Treasury Management Team.

 The outturn against the treasury and prudential indicators set within the
Treasury Strategy 2017/18 is shown in Annex B.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1.

An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. Sufficient
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financial resources are required to deliver and underpin the Council’s main
priorities.
5.

Options

5.1.

This report sets out the treasury management position for High Peak Borough
Council for 2017/18. As such it is a statement of fact and there are no options to
consider.

6.

Implications

6.1.

Community Safety – (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2.

Workforce
None

6.3.

Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and
Equality Policies.

6.4.

Financial Considerations
Included throughout the report.

6.5.

Legal
None

6.6.

Sustainability
None

6.7.

Internal and External Consultation
None

6.8.

Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with Treasury
Management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or deposits. For
this reason, the Council engages the services of external Treasury Management
advisors, Link Asset Services (‘Link’).
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the Council’s
formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That strategy includes a number
of risk management features such as the overriding priority that security of deposit
takes precedence over return on investment.
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ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Background Papers
‘Treasury Management Strategy
Statement 2017/18’
Audit & Regulatory Committee Feb 17

Location
Finance and Procurement, Town
Hall, Buxton

‘Treasury Management – Governance
and Scrutiny Arrangements’
Audit & Regulatory Committee Sept 09

Contacts
Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186
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1.

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury report reviewing treasury management
activities and the outturn against prudential and treasury indicators for 2017/18.
This report meets the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and
the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential
Code).

1.2

The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and
scrutiny of Treasury Management policy and activities. This report provides details
of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with the
Council’s policies previously approved by Members.

1.3

This report covers:









Strategy for 2017/18
Economy in 2017/18
The Council’s treasury position as at 31st March 2018
Capital Expenditure and the Overall Borrowing Need
Borrowing Outturn
Investment Performance
Investment Portfolio & Yield
Compliance with Prudential Indicators

2.

The 2017/18 Treasury Management Strategy

2.1

The 2017/18 Treasury Strategy anticipated that there would be no change in Bank
Rate during the year while the UK negotiated terms for withdrawal from the EU,
though acknowledged that other factors could bring the pace and timing of
increases forward.

2.2

Volatility in rates and an overall balance of risks was expected to continue to the
downside throughout the year as external influences weigh on the UK.

3.

Economic Conditions 2017/18

3.1

The outcome of the EU referendum lead to pessimistic outlooks and economic
forecasts which had the consequence of the Bank of England cutting the base rate
to 0.25% in August 2016. However, during 2017 there was a major shift in
expectations in financial markets of how soon base rate would begin to rise based
on economic data throughout the year. The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)
meeting in September 2017 significantly changed the tone of forecasts; from which
followed the withdrawal of the emergency rate cut to return base rate to 0.50% in
November 2017.

3.2

The more positive tone and forecasts resulted in investment rates improving at the
end of the year, with borrowing rates reacting similarly.
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4

The Current Treasury Position

4.1

The Council’s debt and investment position at the beginning and the end of the
2017/18 financial year was as follows:
2016/17
2017/18
31st March
31st March
Rate/Return
Rate/Return
2017 Principal
2018 Principal
External Borrowing
Public Works Loan Board
Market Loans
Local Authority Loans
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total Debt
Investments
In-House
Total Investments*

£54,025,404
£12,800,000
£5,000,000
£410,899
£72,236,303

3.76%
4.57%
2.50%
n/a
3.80%

£54,025,404
£12,800,000
£5,000,000
£286,492
£72,111,896

3.76%
4.57%
2.50%
n/a
3.80%

£13,715,031
£13,715,031

0.51%
0.51%

£13,747,417
£13,747,417

0.49%
0.49%

* includes funds held in the Council’s main bank account (NatWest)

5.

The Council’s Capital Expenditure & Borrowing Requirement 2017/18

5.1

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities
may either be financed:
 through the application of capital or revenue resources (including capital
receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.); or


5.2

by external borrowing, where there is insufficient internal resource or where a
decision is taken to finance expenditure externally.

Capital expenditure constitutes one of the required prudential indicators. The table
below shows actual capital expenditure for 2017/18 and how this was financed:
2017/18 Projected
Outturn (£)
General Fund Capital Expenditure
HRA Capital Expenditure
Total
Resourced by:
Capital receipts
Capital grants & contributions
Reserve Funding
HRA Contribution
Unfinanced in year capital expenditure
(Underlying Need to Borrow)

3,347,796
3,124,879
6,472,675
715,944
376,176
2,056,762
716,705
2,607,088

5.3

The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). It represents the 2017/18 unfinanced capital
expenditure and prior years’ unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been
paid for.

5.4

The Treasury Strategy 2017/18 anticipated a £4,752,000 underlying borrowing
requirement. The table above shows the provisional outturn as £2,607,088. The
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difference is largely made up of the reprofiling of capital expenditure related to the
Asset Management Programme into future years.
5.5

The Treasury Management team plans the Council’s cash position to ensure
sufficient cash is available to meet capital plans and cash flow requirements. This
may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Public Works
Loan Board or the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the
Council.

5.6

The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely.
The Council is required to make an annual revenue charge, called the Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP) to reduce the CFR. This is effectively a repayment via
revenue of the cumulative borrowing need.

5.7

The Council’s overall CFR is shown below:
2017/18 Projected
Outturn (£)
Opening balance (1st April 2017)
Add unfinanced capital expenditure
Less MRP and repayment of finance leases
Closing balance (31st March 2018)

78,783,107
2,607,088
(2,084,974)
79,305,221

5.8

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for the CFR and the
Authorised Borrowing Limit. In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent
over the medium term, external borrowing must only be for a capital purpose –
essentially this means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue
expenditure. Borrowing should not, except in the short-term, exceed the CFR for
2017/18 (plus expected changes to the CFR over 2018/19 and 2019/20). This
indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate
capital needs.

5.9

The table below highlights the Council’s borrowing position against the CFR:
31st March
2018
Outturn £

31st March
2019
Projected £

31st March
2020
Projected £

Borrowing position

72,111,896

75,106,175

77,598,884

Capital Financing Requirement

79,305,221

80,106,553

80,811,342

Over / (Under) Borrowed

(7,193,325)

(5,000,378)

(3,212,458)

5.10

The Council is in an ‘under-borrowed’ position of £7,193,325 as at 31st March 2018,
therefore is complying with the prudential indicator.

6

Borrowing Outturn

6.1

No new external borrowing was taken during 2017/18; the £2,607,088 borrowing
requirement was instead funded using internal resources available at the time.
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6.2

There were no further maturities of existing loans during 2017/18, though it was
anticipated in the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2017/18 that part of the
maturities of £9,748,100 which occurred during 2016/17 would be refinanced during
2017/18. However cash reserves continued to be available to fund that balance
internally during the year. There were no future maturing loans refinanced during
the year.

6.3

Currently the cost of borrowing is greater than the interest income lost through
reduced investment opportunities resulting from this internal borrowing. The
treasury team continue to monitor this balance for the potential of borrowing interest
rates increasing in the future.

6.4

The Council’s level of external borrowing (excluding the finance lease arrangement)
as at 31st March 2018 totalled £71,825,404 (approximately 70% HRA, 30% General
Fund).

6.5

As a result of a smaller overall borrowing requirement in the year and the internal
funding described above, the total borrowing costs achieved a saving of £45,000
against the budget. The overall cost is split between the General Fund and HRA
under the one pool approach. As the HRA continues to make voluntary MRP of
£1.249million and has not increased the underlying need to borrow, its share has
reduced, therefore has achieved an underspend of £75,000 against its budget.
There is an overspend of £30,000 against the general fund budget of £1,425,225.

6.6

Attention must be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure maturity dates
are evenly spread and the Council is not exposed to a substantial re-financing
requirement at any one time, when interest rates are high. The graph below
illustrates the maturity profile of the current portfolio of loans.

NB: in accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of £4.3m showing as
‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

6.7

The graph shows that there are fixed term loans of £5million maturing in 2018/19.
Any potential refinancing of these is considered through the Medium Term Financial
Plan forecasts.
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6.8

Debt Rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to amend
the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of
volatility of debt or vary the interest payable.

6.9

No debt rescheduling took place during 2017/18. Link advised that the premium the
Council would expect to pay on early redemption would be higher than potential
interest savings from debt rescheduling.

7

Investment Performance

7.1

The economic backdrop for the year underpins how the Council has performed with
regard to maximising its investment return. Continued uncertainty in the aftermath
of the 2008 financial crisis promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments
would continue to be dominated by lower counterparty risk considerations, resulting
in relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates.

7.2

The investment performance of the Treasury Management function is dependent
upon a number of factors, including the size of available investment balances; the
market interest rates available; the timing of capital spend; the restrictions placed
on the Council by its approved Lending List.

7.3

The Council achieved an average interest rate of 0.49% on its investment portfolio.
This compared favourably with market benchmarks as shown in the table below:
Comparator
HPBC Total
HPBC Total Long-term (>364 days)
HPBC Total Short-term (<364 days)
HPBC Total Short-term (instant access)

Average
Rate Q1

Average
Rate Q2

Average
Rate Q3

Average
Rate Q4

Total
2017/18

0.44%
0.55%
0.35%

0.47%
0.56%
0.35%

0.49%
0.58%
0.38%

0.55%
0.69%
0.47%

0.49%
0.59%
0.40%

Link Benchmarks
*LIBID

7 Day Rate

0.11%

0.11%

0.28%

0.36%

0.21%

*LIBID

3 Month Rate

0.19%

0.17%

0.35%

0.44%

0.29%

*LIBID 6 Month Rate

0.33%

0.31%

0.44%

0.53%

0.40%

*LIBID 12 Month Rate

0.54%

0.54%

0.64%

0.74%

0.61%

Base Rate at the end of the period

0.25%

0.25%

0.50%

0.50%

0.50%

*LIBID (London Interbank Bid Rate)

7.4

Most of the investment portfolio was held on a short-term basis (< 1 year) through
2017/18, in line with professional advice issued by Link. The Council continues to
take advantage of the above market rates on offer to public bodies by partnationalised banks.

7.5

The return on fixed short term investments has fluctuated in during the year, initially
dropping from the after effects of the reduction in Base Rate to 0.25% in August
2016, then regaining though increasing rates available after the return of Base Rate
to 0.50% in November 2017.
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8

Investment Portfolio & Interest Yield

8.1

The Council manages its investments in-house, investing only with institutions that
meet the Council’s approved minimum lending criteria. The Council currently
invests for a range of periods from overnight up to 2 years, dependent on cash
flows, its interest rate view, the interest rates on offer and durational limits as set out
in the Treasury Strategy.

8.2

The Lending List is constructed based on credit ratings provided by the three main
credit agencies supplemented by additional market data, using the Link
Creditworthiness analysis.

8.3

Money was invested during the year with 10 institutions. All investments were
placed in line with the Council’s approved lending limits (see Annex A for current
lending limits) and the Treasury Management Strategy.

8.4

The table below summarises the institutions that the Council invested funds with
during the financial year. It also indicates the average daily investment, interest
earned and the associated interest rates. Interest rates vary depending on the
length and timing of investments. The investment funds include those held in the
Council’s instant access accounts. The average daily investment during 2017/18
was £18.7m.
Financial Institution
Santander
Money Market Funds
Lloyds Bank
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of Scotland
Bank of Scotland
NatWest Bank
Nationwide Building Society
Coventry Building Society
Svenska Handelsbanken
Total

8.5

Country of
Domicile
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
Sweden

Interest
Earned
(£s)
24,262
10,086
17,081
18,920
10,034
5,384
771
3,470
2,088
153
92,249

Average Daily
Investment (£s)
3,988,189
3,438,904
2,982,877
2,838,356
1,402,740
1,370,364
1,182,800
1,005,479
564,384
61,728
18,835,821

Rate of
Return
(%)
0.61
0.29
0.57
0.67
0.72
0.39
0.07
0.35
0.37
0.25
0.49

The Council earned £92,249 in investment income in 2017/18. This is a surplus of
£27,529 against the interest income budget of £64,720: the outturn fluctuated
during the year when fixed investment rates dropped following the reduction in the
Bank of England Base Rate in August 2016, but was offset by increases following
the return to 0.50% in November 2017.
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8.6

Investments held at the 31st March 2018 are highlighted in the table below:
Financial Institution

Country
of
domicile

Group / Parent

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Santander
Lloyds Banking Group
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of Scotland
Money Market Fund
Royal Bank of Scotland

£4,000,000
£3,150,000
£2,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,800,000
£797,000

Total Principal Invested

£13,747,000

Santander
Lloyds Bank
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of Scotland
Money Market Funds
NatWest Bank

8.7

Principal
Amount
Invested

All investments held as at 31st March 2018 are for a period of one year or less. The
exposure to fixed and variable interest rates is shown below:

Fixed Rate
Variable Rate
TOTAL

31st March
2018 Actual
£7,150,000
£6,597,000
£13,747,000

8.8

As reported during the year, MiFID II (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II)
was introduced on 3rd January 2018. These regulations govern the relationship
between the Council and financial institutions dealing with borrowing, money
markets and tradable instruments (CD’s) – simple term deposits are not affected.
The Council has opted up to ‘professional’ client status to continue to deal with the
institutions as it did before the regulatory change. There has been little or no effect
on the Council aside from the initial paperwork process in opting up.

9

Compliance with Treasury Limits

9.1

Treasury Limits and Prudential Indicators were set in the 2017/18 Treasury
Management Strategy. The full outturn for the Indicators is shown in Annex B.
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ANNEX A

Current Lending Limits
UK Banks
Category

Principal Limit

Maximum Length

Portfolio (% of
highest balance)

Purple

£5.5m

Up to 2 years

20%

Orange

£4.9m

Up to 1 year

18%

Red

£4.0m

Up to 6 months

15%

Green

£3.5m

Up to 100 days

13%

Yellow**

£5.5m

Up to 5 years

20%

No Colour

n/a

Not to be used

n/a

Category

Principal Limit

Maximum Length

Portfolio (% of
highest balance)

Purple

£4.0m

Up to 2 years

15%

Orange

£3.3m

Up to 1 year

12%

Red

£2.7m

Up to 6 months

10%

Green

£2.2m

Up to 100 days

8%

No Colour

n/a

Not to be used

n/a

International Banks

Nationalised Banks
Category
Blue
NatWest (the Council’s main
bank account)

Principal
Limit
£5.5m

Maximum
Length
Up to 1 year

Portfolio (% of
highest balance)
20%

£8.2m

Up to 1 year

30%

Group Limits
Category

Portfolio (% of
highest
balance*)

Individual
Principal Limit

Portfolio %
increased by
50%

Group Principal
Limit

Blue
Purple
Orange
Red
Green

20%
20%
18%
15%
13%

£5.5m
£5.5m
£4.9m
£4.0m
£3.5m

30%
30%
27%
23%
20%

£8.2m
£8.2m
£7.4m
£6.3m
£5.5m

Money Market Funds
£4.9m for up to 1 year per fund (£6.3m maximum overall)
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ANNEX B
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

2017/18
Strategy
£'000

2017/18
Provisional
Outturn
£'000

Capital Expenditure
General Fund

5,865

3,348

HRA

3,936

3,125

Total

9,801

6,473

General Fund

16%

13%

HRA

15%

14%

78,863

72,112*

4,752

2,607

General Fund

25,779

23,446

HRA

55,859

55,859

TOTAL

81,638

79,305

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

Gross borrowing requirement
Total Gross Borrowing (31st March)
2017/18 borrowing requirement
*includes £286,000 of Finance Lease liabilities

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement
General Fund

3,913

1,771

HRA

(1,249)

(1,249)

Total

2,664

522

Decreases resulting from MRP payments being greater than financing requirement
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on
Council Tax Band D equivalent
Actual compared to Feb 17 Budget Strategy

£1.23

(£0.13)

Reduction in impact due to lower than budgeted capital expenditure and under borrowed position,
funded by internal borrowing
Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on
Housing Rent per week
Actual compared to Feb 17 Budget Strategy

(£0.01p)

(£0.05p)

Reduction in impact due to lower than budgeted capital spend – reduced impact on investment
balances
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2017/18
TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS

Strategy
£'000

Authorised Limit for external debt

2017/18
Provisional
Outturn
£'000

Limit
88,211

Borrowing

286

286

88,497

72,111

Limit
85,711

Actual
71,825

other long term liabilities
TOTAL
Operational Boundary for external debt
borrowing

286

286

85,997

72,111

Limit
83,531

Actual
71,825

26,000

11,150

other long term liabilities
TOTAL
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
Borrowing
Investments
Upper limit for variable rate exposure

Actual
71,825

Limit

Actual

Borrowing

23,607

0

Investments

25,300

18,646

Actual based on highest balance during the year

Limit
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over
364 days

Maturity structure of fixed rate
borrowing during 2017/18

4,000

Upper limit in
2017/18 Strategy

Actual
0

2017/18 Actual
Maturity Profile
(as at 31st March
2018)

under 12 months *

30%

13%

12 months and within 2 years

30%

0%

2 years and within 5 years

40%

5%

5 years and within 10 years

60%

5%

10 years and above

90%

77%

* in accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS is now deemed to be the next call date. Loans of £4.3m (6%)
showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.
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Agenda Item 8
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018

TITLE:

Treasury Management Update: Mid-Year
Report 2018/19

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor
for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Manager
Emily Bennetts – Finance Business
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A - Treasury Management Mid-Year Update Report – 30th June
2018
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1. To allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s treasury management
performance in 2018/19 in compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury
Management and generally accepted good practice.
2.

Recommendation

2.1. That the committee note the current treasury management position (as at
30th June 2018).
3.

Executive Summary

3.1. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code
of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the Council in March
2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, one of which is to
produce at least one mid-year operational report.
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3.2. This report comprises the following:


The latest interest rate forecast;



Investment income earned to date and projected for 2018/19;



The current investment portfolio;



The borrowing portfolio with projected borrowing costs for 2018/19 and
debt rescheduling options; and



Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the
Treasury Management Strategy 2018/19.

3.3. The main headlines include:

4.



The Bank of England base rate remains unchanged at 0.50%.



The investment income budget of £139,940 is expected to be on target
based on current levels, pending the outcome of future base rate rises.



A saving of £21,670 overall is forecast on the borrowing costs budget,
split £11,950 to the general fund and £9,720 to the HRA, due to
reduced MRP on the general fund and improved investment income for
the HRA.



The average return on investments achieved by the Council during the
period to 1st April to 30th June was 0.61%. This compares favorably to
short-term industry benchmarks.



The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £14.8 million spread across
eight separate institutions as at 30th June 2018.



The Council’s total level of debt as at 30th June was £72,111,896
(including finance leases) and the average rate of borrowing is 3.76%.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1. An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and
effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal.
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the
Council’s main priorities.
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5.

Options and Analysis

5.1. This report sets out the Treasury Management position for High Peak
Borough Council for 2018/19 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is
a statement of fact and there are no options.
6.

Implications

6.1. Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None
6.2. Workforce
None
6.3. Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.
6.4. Financial Considerations
Financial considerations are embedded throughout the report.
6.5. Legal
None
6.6. Sustainability
None
6.7. Internal and External Consultation
None
6.8. Risk Assessment
There are a number of inherent financial risks associated with treasury
management activity, not least the potential for loss of interest and/ or
deposits. For this reason, the Council engages the services of external
treasury management advisors, Link Asset Services.
Investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with the
Council’s formally adopted Treasury Management Strategy. That strategy
includes a number of risk management features such as the overriding
priority that security of deposit takes precedence over return on investment.
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
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Background Papers

Location

Contacts

‘Treasury Management – Governance
and Scrutiny Arrangements’
(Audit & Regulatory Committee
September 2009)

Finance & Performance,
Town Hall, Buxton

Claire Hazeldene
Finance & Procurement Manager
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Emily Bennetts
Finance Business Partner
Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4186

‘Treasury Management Strategy
2018/19
(Audit & Regulatory Committee
February 2018, Revised at Council
May 2018)
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Appendix A

High Peak Borough Council
Working for our community

Treasury Management Update
30th June 2018

1. Introduction
2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates
3. Investment Income
4. Investment Portfolio
5. Borrowing Position
6. Prudential Indicators
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1.

Introduction

1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those
risks”.
1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury
Management which recommends that Members should be briefed on
Treasury Management activities at least twice a year.
1.3. The Audit & Regulatory Committee has delegated responsibility for
scrutinising the treasury function. The Committee’s role includes approval
of the annual treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational
treasury management reports. Decisions taken by the Audit & Regulatory
Committee are reported to full Council.
1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19 was
approved by Council on 20th February 2018 and revised on 3rd May 2018
to incorporate changes to the capital programme. This report details
treasury management performance up to the 30th June 2018 and projects
forward for the remainder of the financial year.
2.

Economic Forecast – Interest Rates

2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the
latest base rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:
%
Bank Rate
5yr PWLB
rate
10r PWLB
rate
25yr PWLB
rate
50yr PWLB
rate

Sep18
0.50

Dec18
0.75

Mar19
0.75

Jun19
0.75

Sep19
1.00

Dec19
1.00

Mar20
1.00

Jun20
1.25

Sep20
1.25

Dec20
1.50

Mar21
1.50

2.00

2.00

2.10

2.20

2.20

2.30

2.30

2.40

2.40

2.50

2.50

2.40

2.50

2.60

2.60

2.70

2.80

2.80

2.90

2.90

3.00

3.00

2.80

2.90

3.00

3.10

3.20

3.30

3.30

3.40

3.40

3.50

3.50

2.50

2.60

2.70

2.80

2.90

3.00

3.00

3.10

3.10

3.20

3.20

2.2. During January and February financial markets were viewing a Bank Rate
increase at the May Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting as likely to
be a near certainty after strong growth in the second half of 2017. However,
the ensuing weeks before the meeting saw opinion turn right around and
the MPC left rates unchanged due to concerns as to whether the weak
growth in quarter 1 was indicative of the start of a prolonged slow down or
just a temporary blip, to which bad weather had been just one contributor.
Since May, opinion has again turned to suggest that an August Bank Rate
increase is a possibility.
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2.3. However, there remains much uncertainty around the Brexit negotiations,
consumer spending levels and business investment, so it is still far too early
to be confident about how strong growth and inflationary pressures will be
over the next two years, and therefore the pace of any rate increases.
3.

Investment Income

3.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th June 2018 totalled
£26,218. The Council has budgeted to receive £139,940 in investment
income in 2018/19. The budget was set with the potential for one rate rise of
0.25% during 2018/19. Pending the outcome of this, current investment
income levels are on target to meet the budget.
3.2. Average interest rates achieved on the Council’s investments are shown in
the table below; these compare favourably to the LIBID rates, the
recognised industry benchmark rates:
Comparator
HPBC Average
HPBC long-term fixed (>364 days)
HPBC short-term fixed (<364 days)
HPBC instant access

Average
Rate Q1
0.61%
0.79%
0.46%

Benchmarks
*LIBID 7 day rate
*LIBID 3 month rate
*LIBID 6 month rate
*LIBID 12 month rate

0.36%
0.55%
0.67%
0.84%

Base Rate at the end of the period

0.50%

*LIBID = London Inter Bank Bid Rate

3.3. The table below highlights the level of investment activity and the rates
obtained in the period from 1st April to 30th June 2018. Investments are
made in line with Link’s creditworthiness guidance and the duration limits
applied to each colour banding.
Institution
Cooperatieve Rabobank
Coventry Building Society
Goldman Sachs
Lloyds Bank
Lloyds Bank
Instant Access Cash
(Instant Access Accounts & Money Market Funds)

Country of
Domicile
Netherlands
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
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Amount

Length

Rate

£1,000,000
£1,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,150,000
£1,000,000

12 months
6 months
6 months
6 months
12 months

1.03%
0.71%
0.825%
0.75%
1.00%

£2,333,670
(daily average)

0.61%

3.4. The rates achieved by the Council vary by institution, by duration of
investment and by the timing of when the investment was made. The
Council’s lending criteria restricts the number of financial institutions that
are eligible to be on the lending list, and the amount that can be invested
with eligible counterparties (and counterparty groups) at any one time.
3.5. The majority of the investment portfolio is held on a short-term basis (<1
year). The Council continues to utilise same day access business accounts,
money market funds, fixed term deposits and certificates of deposits (via
the use of custodian King & Shaxson) which offer competitive rates and
access to banks that would not necessarily deal direct with the Authority for
the sums invested.
4.

Investment Portfolio

4.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial
institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria. The Council’s
investment portfolio at 30th June 2018 totalled £14,794,000:
Financial Institution
Santander UK
Lloyds Bank
Goldman Sachs
Money Market Funds
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA
Coventry Building Society

Country of
Domicile
UK
UK
UK
UK
Netherlands
UK

£4,200,000
£3,150,000
£2,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000
£1,000,000

UK

£1,000,000

UK

£444,000
£14,794,000

NatWest Markets (NRFB)
(previously Royal Bank of
Scotland)
NatWest Bank
TOTAL

Amount

Maximum recommended
lending duration
RED (6 months)
ORANGE (12 months)
RED (6 months)
WHITE (12 months)
ORANGE (12 months)
RED (6 months)
No Colour
(was BLUE (12 months))
BLUE (12 months)

4.2. The maximum investment term, as recommended by Link, is shown by
colour banding in the table below:

PURPLE

Maximum
Duration of
Investment
Up to 2 years

ORANGE

Up to 12 months

£5.4m

£3.6m

RED

Up to 6 months

£4.5m

£3.0m

GREEN

Up to 100 days

£3.9m

£2.4m

Up to 1 year

£6.0m

n/a

Up to 1 year

£9.0m

n/a

Up to 1 year
Up to 1 year
Over 1 Year

£5.4m
n/a
£4.0m

n/a
n/a
n/a

Colour Banding

BLUE (Part & fully nationalised
financial institutions)
BLUE (NatWest)
Money Market Funds
WHITE (Lending to the
Government / Local Authorities)
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UK
Banks

International
Banks

£6.0m

£4.5m

4.3. Group limits are also applied:
Category
BLUE
PURPLE
ORANGE
RED
GREEN
Money
Market
Funds

Portfolio
(% of
highest
balance*)
20%
20%
18%
15%
13%
18%

Individual
Principal
Limit

Portfolio %
increased by
50%

Group
Principal
Limit

£6.0m
£6.0m
£5.4m
£4.5m
£3.9m

30%
30%
27%
23%
20%

£9.0m
£9.0m
£8.1m
£6.9m
£6.0m

£5.4m

23%

£6.9m

4.4. The average level of funds available for investment up to 30th June 2018
was £17million. Investments are generally made up of short-term cash and
core cash. Short-term cash is dependent on the timing of major payments
e.g. precept payments, salaries and creditor payments, and major receipts
e.g. receipt of grants and Council Tax direct debits. Core cash is
dependent on capital programme commitments.
4.5. The largest UK banks are currently undergoing a process called ‘ringfencing’ under which they are required by UK law to separate core retail
banking services from their investment and international banking activities
by 1st January 2019. Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in
response to the global financial crisis. The result of this is for these banks to
create a ring-fenced and non-ring-fenced entity and each bank has made
different decisions about which financial products and activities belong in
each. The newly created entities are rated by the major rating agencies in
the same way existing entities already are.
4.6. Only one product or investment of the Council has been affected by this
ring-fencing process. A 12 month CD (Certificate of Deposit) of £1,000,000
was purchased from the Royal Bank of Scotland through King & Shaxson
on 26th October 2017 with interest paid at 0.75%. The Royal Bank of
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Scotland was colour coded Blue (12 months) under the Link colour coded
creditworthiness scheme. Through ring-fencing, this investment now sits
with the newly created NatWest Markets plc which is a non-ring-fenced
bank. Under the Link’s model this institution does not have a colour
therefore no new investments would be undertaken. As this particular
investment is a CD it can be sold on the secondary market, though there
may be a premium attached to this. The treasury team have discussed this
with our advisors at Link who have said there is no urgency to divest of this
product at the current time. This will continue to be monitored until the
product matures on 25th October 2018.

5.

Borrowing Position

5.1. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of
the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to
borrow. Therefore, the Council establishes ‘Affordable Borrowing Limits’ as
part of the prudential indicators within the approved Treasury Management
Strategy Statement.
5.2. The Council’s total outstanding debt as at 30th June 2018 is £72,111,896,
as detailed in the table below:

Public Works Loan Board

External
Borrowing
£54,025,404

Average
Interest Rate
3.76%

between 1 and 50 years

Market Loans

£12,800,000

4.57%

between 5 and 50 years

£5,000,000

2.50%

up to 2 years

n/a

Up to 4 years

Lender

Local Authority Loans
Finance Leases
Total

£286,492
£72,111,896

Maturity period

3.76%

5.3. The ‘operational boundary’ (£87,783,000) and ‘authorised limit’
(£90,283,000) indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing
available to the Council to fund the capital programme. The current level of
borrowing is within prudential limits.
5.4. The £286,492 balance on finance leases which forms part of the external
debt relates to a number of vehicles which were originally acquired and
funded via finance lease arrangements. The decision was approved to
terminate this arrangement and purchase the vehicles from the lease
company. This transaction took place on the last working day of June. The
accounting arrangements for this and the write down of the finance lease
balance will be determined in the year.
5.5. The Council adopts a ‘one pool’ approach to borrowing whereby
investments and borrowing are managed centrally with the proportional
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income and expenditure then split between the general fund and HRA. The
Council has budgeted for interest charges and other financing costs of
£1,694,500 to the general fund and £1,891,470 to the HRA in 2018/19.
5.6. The budget for borrowing costs was based on the existing external debt and
new external debt from the 2017/18 and 2018/19 general fund borrowing
requirements plus the refinancing of a portion of the maturing debt in
December 2018.
5.7. The revised capital expenditure programme for 2018/19 now forecasts a
borrowing requirement of £4.9 million, for which external borrowing is
anticipated mid-year.
5.8. There has been no ‘new’ borrowing so far during the year, nor have any
loans been refinanced. The next maturing loans of £5million occur in
December 2018. No new debt was taken in 2017/18 and the borrowing
requirement from that year continues to be internally funded. The savings
related to this internal borrowing are expected to offset the increase in
borrowing costs relating to the revised capital expenditure programme and
consequent borrowing requirement for 2018/19.
5.9. Overall there is a reduction in the borrowing costs expenditure forecast for
the year of £21,670: split £11,950 to the general fund and £9,720 to the
HRA. The underspend for the general fund relates to reduced MRP
payment for the year as a result of a smaller borrowing requirement than
forecast in 2017/18; the HRA is forecast to receive an improved investment
income proportion on the basis of its reserves available for investment and
the improving average interest rate – this is netted off the HRA’s
proportional borrowing costs.
5.10. The treasury team will continue to monitor the appropriate time to externally
borrow based on the profile of spend and opportunities to ‘internally’ borrow,
considering the movement in interest rates and the cost of carry of any
borrowings taken.
5.11. Attention must also be given to the maturity profile of the loans to ensure
maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not exposed to a
substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest rates
are high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans.
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Debt Maturity Profile
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000
Less than
1 year*

1-2
years

2-5
years

6 - 10
years

11- 20
years

21 - 30
years

31 - 40
years

41 - 50
years

Greater
than 50
years

*In accordance with guidance, the maturity date of LOBOS is deemed to be the next call date. Loans of
£4.3m showing as ‘less than 1 year’ have a full maturity date of £1m 2023/24, £3.3m 2064/65.

5.12. Debt rescheduling is the reorganisation of existing debt in such a way as to
amend the debt repayments, reduce the principal sum borrowed, alter the
degree of volatility of debt or vary the interest payable, thus managing the
risk. The treasury team, along with Link, continually monitor prospects for
debt rescheduling to achieve overall financial benefit to the Council.
5.13. No rescheduling has taken place during 2018/19 to date. The Council will
work with Link to identify any potential debt rescheduling options – taking
account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on early
redemption compared to the potential interest savings.
6.

Prudential Indicators

6.1. The Council has operated within the treasury management and prudential
indicators set in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2018/19 and
complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.
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Agenda Item 9
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

2017/18 Internal Audit Periodic Report May to
June 2018

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1 - Audits Completed Between 1st May 2018 and 30th June 2018
1.

Reason for the Report:

1.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must report periodically to the Audit
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the committee note the information contained within this report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits
undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 financial
year. This includes the number and classification of recommendations made,
agreed and where applicable, implemented by management.

3.2

All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 98% of 2017/18
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal
Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they
will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted that it is the
responsibility of relevant managers to implement agreed recommendations.
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4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual
Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial
and other resources to ensure value for money.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
None.

6.5

Legal
None.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
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Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

None

N/A

John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
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7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits
undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 financial
year. This includes the number and classification of recommendations made,
agreed and where applicable, implemented by management.

7.2

The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual risk
assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2017/18 was agreed by this
Committee at the 18th May 2017 meeting. The Internal Audit service also
carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is usually built
in. This unplanned work consists mainly of internal control consultancy work
and special investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity.

8.

Audit Reports Issued

8.1

A summary of the audits completed during the period 1st May 2018 to 30th
June 2018 is shown in the table below. Further details of these audits outlining
key issues and strengths and improvements are shown in Appendix 1.
Service

Audit

Recommendations
High
Medium
Low
Risk
Risk
Risk
0
0
5

Assurance

Legal & Election
Services

Freedom of
Information

Housing & Benefits

Carelink

0

5

25

Limited

Regeneration

Regeneration

0

1

2

Satisfactory

Finance &
Procurement

NNDR

0

0

4

Satisfactory

Legal & Election
Services

Legal Services

0

1

7

Satisfactory

Finance &
Procurement

General Ledger

0

0

1

Substantial

Environmental
Services

Licensing

0

5

14

Limited

Customer Services

Housing Strategy

0

2

3

Satisfactory

Finance &
Procurement

Payroll

0

4

10

Satisfactory

Customer Services

Housing Benefits

0

3

8

Satisfactory

Finance &
Procurement

Recovery

0

0

9

Satisfactory
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Satisfactory

8.2

A further breakdown of all of the audits completed during the 2017/18 financial
year including the current status of audit recommendations is detailed in the
Annual Report later on this agenda. All audit recommendations have been
agreed, and to date 98% of 2017/18 audit recommendations that are due have
been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified
and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases. It should be
noted that it is the responsibility of relevant managers to implement agreed
recommendations.

8.3

Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation
being allocated a risk, every audit completed has been given an ‘assurance
opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control
environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control
environment. The control levels are defined as follows:
Control Level
Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Unsatisfactory

Definition
There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve
the objectives and controls are consistently applied.
There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the
most part, are consistently applied. However, weakness in
the design or inconsistent application of controls within a
few areas put achievement of particular objectives at risk.
Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance
with controls in a number of areas are such to put the
system objectives at risk.
There is a significant breakdown in the framework of
controls, which leaves the system open to significant abuse
or error.
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APPENDIX 1

AUDITS COMPLETED BETWEEN 1st MAY 2018 &
30th JUNE 2018
Freedom of Information
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 The Infreemation system was implemented
in 2016 which has streamlined and
standardised the procedure for dealing with
FOI requests.
 A Guidance Document and Infreemation
procedure notes are available to all staff via
the Intranet.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Publication Scheme
FOI Requests
Internal Reviews
Total
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Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1
3
5

A

APPENDIX 1

Carelink
Assurance Level
Assurance: LIMITED
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives
section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Any DBS certificates which have expired
should be promptly renewed.
 Formal stock records should be maintained
to record all items of stock delivered and
distributed.
 A Procurement exercise should be
undertaken to ensure that a suitable
provider of the Carelink monitoring service
is arranged prior to the expiry of the current
contract.
 Adequate procedures should be developed
between the Recovery and Carelink service
with regard to the recovery of Carelink
debts.
 A review of the Carelink scheme should be
undertaken
based
on
the
current
knowledge of the future funding and
structure of the service to determine the
most effective operating model.

Strengths and Improvements
 Corporate recruitment procedures have
been followed with regard to the
appointment of Carelink staff.
 All staff have been provided with IT
equipment to enable mobile access to client
information.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

DBS Checks
Induction & Training
Stock Records
IT Equipment
Risk Assessments
Client Documentation
Client Visits
Promotion of the Carelink Service
Client Satisfaction
Carelink Monitoring Service
Income
Staffing Costs
Service Costings
Total

A

Medium
R
A
1

Low
R

A

5
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
5
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3
2
1
15

3
1
1
1
2
2
10

APPENDIX 1

Regeneration
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Contract awards/extensions should be
appropriately processed, with all payments
being
made
in
accordance
with
Procurement Procedure Rules.

Strengths and Improvements
 Project roles and responsibilities have been
established for each project.
 Project monitoring procedures are well
established.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Risk Registers
Procurement
Total

Medium
R
A
1
1
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Low
R
2
2

A

Non-Domestic Rates
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 The Council has taken appropriate steps to
effectively manage any implications as a
result of the Business Rates Retention
Scheme. HPBC is part of a county-wide pool
resulting in an estimated financial benefit of
approximately £200,000 in 2018/19.
 Cash received via the Paris Income
Management system is regularly reconciled
to both the NNDR system, and Integra
Financial Management system.
 A sample of VO schedules reviewed showed
that these are reconciled to the NNDR
system regularly and promptly.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Property Inspections
Year End Procedure
Refunds
Total
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A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
2
1
4

A

Legal Services
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Documentation should be securely stored
with appropriately restricted access.

Strengths and Improvements
 Electronic registration of title with the Land
Registry is now complete.
 Appropriate contracts are in place to source
external legal support where necessary.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Document Storage
Document Sealing
Iken
Time Recording
Legality Guide
Anti Money Laundering Policy
Service Level Agreements
Purchase Orders
Total

Medium
R
A
1

Low
R

A

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
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1
5

2

General Ledger
Assurance Level
Assurance: SUBSTANTIAL
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide substantial assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 The end of year bank reconciliation was
carried out promptly and found to be in
balance.
 A sample of journals reviewed were found
to be correctly authorised and contained
sufficient detail.
 Regular control account reconciliations are
carried out.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Financial Regulations & Procedure Rules
Total
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A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
1

A

Licensing
Assurance Level
Assurance: LIMITED
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide limited assurance that
risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and Objectives
section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 All Licensing Act 2003 applications should
be supported with sufficient documentation
and processed in accordance with the
relevant policies and procedures.
 A procedure should be developed to
ensure that the details of a licence are
correct prior to issue, and that the correct
licence is available in the LalPac system.
 DBS reports should be retained securely
for the duration of the licence and then
disposed of responsibly in accordance with
the Data Protection Act.
 A procedure should be developed to
ensure that applications/renewals received
for small society lotteries are supported
with fully completed application forms.
 The backlog of licences pending should be
prioritised, and procedures implemented to
ensure that licences are produced and
issued promptly upon receipt.

Strengths and Improvements
 All licences sampled had been appropriately
approved.
 There is a procedure in place to respond to
complaints.
 There is a procedure in place to ensure
feed and charges are approved prior to the
start of the financial year.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Policy & Procedures
Electronic Filing System
Logging of Applications
Licence Application Documentation
Licence Content
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS)
Other Licences
Small Society Lottery Licences
Returns
Income Management
Processing of Applications
Enforcement
Staff Training (LalPac)
Total

Medium
R
A

1
1
1
1

Low
R
2
1
1
1

A

1
1
1
3

1
5
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1
1
13

1
1

Housing Strategy
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Sufficient
documentation
should
be
submitted and adequately assessed for all
right to buy grant applications, and grants
should not be paid until documentary
evidence has been received from the
recipient to confirm that expenditure has
been incurred.

Strengths and Improvements
 An
Empty
Property
Strategy
and
implementation plan has been developed.
 A significant grant has been provided for the
development of affordable homes at Brown
Edge Road.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Right to Buy Grants
Empty Property Strategy
Total

A

Medium
R
A
2
2
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Low
R
1
2
3

A

Payroll
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Reconciliations between the Payroll system
and HR establishment lists should be
undertaken on a regular basis and
adequate records of this retained.
 Access to sensitive and personal employee
data should be appropriately restricted.
 Assurance should be obtained that the
migration to the MyView Payroll system
was accurately completed.
 A procedure should be implemented to
ensure that adequate controls are in place
to identify and correct employee payment
errors.

Strengths and Improvements
 The establishment is updated and amended
independently of the payroll staff.
 The reconciliation of the payroll data to
Integra is completely independent of the
payroll staff.
 Reconciliations of payroll data are
undertaken on a monthly basis.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Establishment
Management Reporting
Access Rights
MyView System Upload
Overtime
Exception Reporting
Employee Payments
Total

Medium
R
A
1

Low
R
2

1
1
1
4
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1
1
3
7

A
1
1
1

3

Recovery
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues

Strengths and Improvements
 2017/18 collection rate targets were
achieved for Business Rates, Council Tax
and Sundry Debtors; with Housing Rents
only being 0.63% behind target.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

Policy & Procedure Notes
Write Offs
Bailiffs
OHMS System
System Access
Reminders
Total

A

Medium
R
A

Low
R
1
3
2

A

1
1
7
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1
2

Housing Benefits
Assurance Level
Assurance: SATISFACTORY
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed.
Key Findings
Key Issues
 Appropriate checks should be undertaken
prior to writing off housing benefit
overpayments.
 All new claims should be processed in
accordance with the Alliance’s ‘Risk Based
Verification Policy’.
 The risk based verification system should
be effectively monitored with regular reports
being submitted to the appropriate body.

Strengths and Improvements
 Risk based verification system is now fully
implemented with the vast majority of claims
being submitted online.

Summary of Recommendations
An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added
value) is shown below:
Description

High
R

A

Performance Reporting
Risk Based Verification
Backdated Claims
Claims Processing
Reconciliations
Overpayments
Restricted Access Accounts
Total

Medium
R
A
2

Low
R
1
1
1

A

1
1
3
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1
2
1
7

1
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Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

Internal Audit – Annual Report 2017/18

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor
for Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1- Year End Information for 2017/18
Appendix 2 - Summary of Assurance Opinions 2017/18
1.

Reason for the Report:

1.1

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards, the Audit Manager must deliver an annual internal audit
opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to inform its
governance statement.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the committee note:



The Audit Service’s 2017/18 year end performance information contained
within this report; and
The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
internal control environment.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The purpose of this report is to summarise year end performance information
for financial year 2017/18. This includes a breakdown of audits undertaken
and completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations
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made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management, external
review results, developments in the service and an assessment of the
Council’s internal control environment.
3.2

The strategic audit plan covered the period 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018
and the year end performance information referred to above is outlined in the
detailed part of this report.

3.3

All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 98% of 2017/18
audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal
Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they
will continue to monitor such cases.

3.4

The external auditors have judged the Audit Service to be effective.

3.5

Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s
governance arrangements including risk management and systems of internal
control were operating adequately and effectively.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual
Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial
and other resources to ensure value for money.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
None.

6.5

Legal
None.
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6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

None

N/A

John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 111

7.

Background and Introduction

7.1

The purpose of this report is to summarise year-end performance information
for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2017/18 financial year.

7.2

The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon the annual audit
plan, which for the financial year 2016/17 was reported to this committee on
18th May 2017 effective from 1st April 2017. The internal audit service also
carry out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is built in. This
unplanned work consists mainly of consultancy work and special investigations
into suspected fraud and irregularity.

8.

Progress against Audit Plan

8.1

Key information for both 2017/18 and the previous financial year for
comparison purposes is summarised in the following table, including
unplanned work unless otherwise stated:
Summary Year End Information for 2017/18

2016/17

Percentage of Audit Plan completed (performance
against annual plan)

92%

90%

Number of recommendations made

291

248

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service
Managers

100%

100%

Percentage of recommendations due implemented
within agreed timescale

98%

99%

8.2

In order to put this into context, completion of 92% of the audit plan represents
three planned audits that were not completed. These audits have been
included within the 2018/19 audit plan where appropriate.

8.3

A further breakdown of the audits completed is detailed in Appendix 1. Should
recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist or
service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system
for the benefit of service delivery. However, all audit recommendations have
been agreed.

8.4

Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation
being allocated a risk and class, every audit completed has been given an
‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal
control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal
control environment. The control levels are defined as follows:
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Control Level
Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Unsatisfactory

Definition
There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve the
objectives and controls are consistently applied.
There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most
part, are consistently applied. However, weakness in the design
or inconsistent application of controls within a few areas put
achievement of particular objectives at risk.
Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance with
controls in a number of areas are such to put the system
objectives at risk.
There is a significant breakdown in the framework of controls,
which leaves the system open to significant abuse or error.

8.5

To date 98% of all 2017/18 audit recommendations that are due have been
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and
not corrected, the Audit Manager is satisfied that they will be resolved in an
appropriate manner and he will continue to monitor such cases. However, it
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement
agreed recommendations.

9.

Effectiveness of Internal Audit

9.1

The Internal Audit Service has a quality control system in place to ensure that
the outputs of the work of the Service are robust, consistent, factual, accurate,
complete and well referenced and presented. This system consists of peer
review and management review of all audit working papers and reports before
audit reports are released in draft form, discussed with management and
agreed final versions formally issued.

9.2

In accordance with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, which required the
Council to, each financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control, and that the findings of this review must be
considered by a committee or by members of the authority meeting as a
whole, a self-assessment to determine compliance with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) has been undertaken as part of the Quality
Assurance and Improvement Programme.

9.3

Last year’s annual review was supplemented by an independent external
quality review which concluded that the internal audit provision within the
Council complies with the expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards. Internal Audit is therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with
the requirements of PSIAS / LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in this
Annual Report can be relied upon for assurance purposes. The annual review
of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is considered by the Audit & Regulatory
Committee in a separate report on this agenda.

10.

External Review

10.1

In addition to the requirements of the Section 151 Officer, the Internal Audit
Service has a duty to satisfy the requirements of the Council’s external auditor.
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10.2

Every year the External Auditors review the Audit Service and as a result of
interim audit work, they have stated in their latest ‘Audit Progress Report and
Sector Update’ for the year ended 31st March 2018, “Overall, we have
concluded that the internal audit service provides an independent and
satisfactory service to the Council and that internal audit work contributes to
an effective internal control environment.”

11.

Developments During 2017/18

11.1

During 2017/18, the Audit Service has carried out the following:










Implemented the annual risk based audit plan in accordance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards ;
Carried out and issued agreed audit reports for 34 Service areas;
Stated an ‘assurance opinion’ for each audit completed, based upon
Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control environment;
Contributed to the development of the Audit and Regulatory Committee
through regular reports;
Following the results of a knowledge and skills framework assessment to
identify and evaluate the overall knowledge and skills of the Audit &
Regulatory Committee, the committee structure was changed to enable the
committee to perform more effectively;
Delivered an annual internal audit opinion for 2016/17 in accordance with
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards providing reasonable assurance
that the systems of internal control were operating adequately and
effectively;
Endorsed a satisfactory Annual Governance Statement with the Council’s
2016/17 Statement of Accounts;

12

Developments for 2018/19

12.1

In 2018/19 the work of the service will again be driven by the regulatory
requirements of local government finance and the corporate and operational
risks facing the Council. The Audit Service is a joint service with Staffordshire
Moorlands DC as part of the strategic alliance and will continue to develop
joint working practices. The Service is committed to a culture of continuous
improvement and will strive to continue adding value to Council services
through regular audits and close liaison with Service Managers, improving
internal control systems and the efficiency, economy and effectiveness of their
services.

12.2

The main areas of work during 2018/19 will be: 


Agreeing working arrangements with the External Auditors and in
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;
Ensuring the Audit Service continues to operate in accordance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by undertaking a gap analysis and
preparing and implementing an action plan if appropriate;
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Continuing to develop the joint Audit Service by reviewing and
implementing where appropriate the recommendations of the independent
external quality review of the service;
Reviewing and preparing the annual Audit Plan for 2018/19;
Completing the Audit Plan in accordance with locally developed
performance indicators;
Planning for and complying with external audit requirements;
Maintaining robust procedures for monitoring and reporting the
implementation of audit recommendations ;
Reviewing and if appropriate updating corporate policies ;
Developing and continuing close working relationships within Derbyshire
and Staffordshire;
Distributing audit reports promptly;
Identifying value for money recommendations and agreeing action with
clients;
Ensuring that all high risk audit recommendations are agreed and actioned
immediately;
Maintaining and improving client satisfaction levels;
Reviewing counter fraud arrangements;
Engaging the services of an ICT audit specialist.

13

Assessment of the Council’s Internal Control Environment

13.1

In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Audit
Manager must deliver an annual internal audit opinion which must conclude on
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of
governance, risk management and control. The system of internal control is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. Internal Audit can therefore
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of adequacy and
effectiveness.

13.2

As previously detailed in paragraph 8.4 above, every audit completed has
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of
the internal control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual
audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
internal control environment. During the financial year 2017/18 the following
opinions were given by Internal Audit (see Appendix 2 for breakdown):




4 service areas had controls within the system to provide substantial
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives
are adequately managed;
28 service areas had controls within the system to provide satisfactory
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives
are adequately managed;
2 service areas had controls within the system to provide limited
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives
are adequately managed;
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13.3

0 service areas had controls within the system to provide unsatisfactory
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives
are adequately managed.

Based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year and the
resultant assurance opinions outlined above, and the implementation by
management of the recommendations agreed, and also comments made by
our external auditors, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance
that the Council’s governance arrangements including risk management
and systems of internal control were operating adequately and
effectively. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified, we
have been assured that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate
manner and we will continue to monitor such cases.
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APPENDIX 1
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – YEAR END INFORMATION FOR 2017/18
AUDIT

TOTAL
RECOMMENDATIONS
Regulatory
Added
value

HIGH RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

MEDIUM RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date
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Procurement
6
1
0
0
0
3
Housing Rents
2
2
0
0
0
2
Cemeteries
10
2
0
0
0
3
Payroll Expenses
9
1
0
0
0
2
Corporate Project Management
8
2
0
0
0
0
Disabled Facilities Grants Assurance
Land Charges
2
3
0
0
0
0
Conservation Grants
5
0
0
0
0
0
Horticulture
9
0
0
0
0
3
Capital Contract Management
}
6
1
0
0
0
1
Housing Planned Maintenance }
Safeguarding Children & V A
12
3
0
0
0
3
Elections
15
3
0
0
0
3
Planning Policy
3
1
0
0
0
0
Housing Advice
8
1
0
0
0
2
Emergency Planning / BCP
16
0
0
0
0
1
Development Control Section 106
3
4
0
0
0
2
Data Protection & Info Governance
15
0
0
0
0
4
Licensing
18
1
0
0
0
5
Freedom of Information
5
0
0
0
0
0
Regeneration
3
0
0
0
0
1
Treasury Management
1
0
0
0
0
0
Sundry Debtors
3
1
0
0
0
1
Carelink
20
10
0
0
0
5
NNDR
4
0
0
0
0
0
Council Tax
7
0
0
0
0
2
Legal Services
6
2
0
0
0
1
Housing Strategy
5
0
0
0
0
2
Creditor Payments
7
0
0
0
0
1
General Ledger
1
0
0
0
0
0
Strategic Partnerships
9
0
0
0
0
2
Budgetary Control
0
1
0
0
0
0
Payroll
11
3
0
0
0
4
Recovery
7
2
0
0
0
0
Housing Benefits
10
1
0
0
0
3
TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS
291
0
56
ACTION TAKEN TO DATE
0
0
Key:
Risk
High
Significant control weakness / inefficiency exists with a high likelihood of occurring, potentially
causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council
assets, information and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly.
Medium

Control weakness / inefficiency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a
breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information
and reputation. Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system
controls / necessary improvement in service provision.

Low

Minor control weakness / inefficiency exists with a minimal impact on the Council assets,
information and reputation. Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide
management with additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement
in service provision.

LOW RISK
RECOMMENDATIONS
Agreed / (Not
Due to
Actioned
Agreed)
date
to date

2
2
2
1
0

2
2
2
1
0

4
2
9
8
10

3
2
9
5
10

3
2
9
5
10

0
0
3
0

0
0
2
0

5
5
6
6

2
5
1
3

2
5
1
3

2
3
0
2
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
3
0
2
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

12
15
4
7
15
5
11
14
5
2
1
3
25
4
5
7
3
6
1
7
1
10
9
8
235

2
2
0
0
8
0
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0

2
2
0
0
8
0
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

21

19

62

62

Class
Regulatory

Added
Value

ASSURANCE OPINION /
COMMENTS

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
N/A
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Limited
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Limited
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Substantial
Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory

To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance with Regulations /
Policies and Procedures.
Intended as an enhancement to the existing system which may provide a benefit
to either the user or the customer.
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APPENDIX 2
HIGH PEAK B.C. INTERNAL AUDIT
SUMMARY OF ASSURANCE OPINIONS 2017/18
SUBSTANTIAL ASSURANCE
Budgetary Control
General Ledger
Planning Policy
Treasury Management

SATISFACTORY ASSURANCE
Capital Contract Management
Cemeteries
Conservation Grants
Corporate Project Management
Council Tax
Creditor Payments
Data Protection & Info Governance
Development Control Section 106
Elections
Emergency Planning / BCP
Freedom of Information
Horticulture
Housing Advice
Housing Benefits
Housing Planned Maintenance
Housing Rents
Housing Strategy
Land Charges
Legal Services
NNDR
Payroll
Payroll Expenses
Procurement
Recovery
Regeneration
Safeguarding Children & V A
Strategic Partnerships
Sundry Debtors

LIMITED ASSURANCE
Carelink
Licensing

UNSATISFACTORY ASSURANCE
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Agenda Item 11
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018

TITLE:

2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of
Internal Audit

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1- 2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
Action Plan
Appendix 2 - Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)
1.

Reason for the Report:

1.1

The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to, in each
financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control, and that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee
or by members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the
effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms
part of this review.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the committee note:



The annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit for 2017/18
including the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme; and
That Internal Audit is operating effectively and can be relied upon when
considering the Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18.
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3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The purpose of this report is to explain the approach taken to comply with the
requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 with regard to the
annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, in
particular the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit and to
present the findings of this review. This requirement was introduced in 2006.

3.2

An update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March
2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN) and Action Plan
created following last years external assessment of Internal Audit has been
undertaken by the Audit Manager. This may subsequently be reviewed by the
Council’s External Auditor as part of their review of Internal Audit. A Quality
Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) has also been produced in
accordance with the requirements of the PSIAS.

3.3

In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest
PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other
qualitative and quantitative factors have been taken into consideration when
determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit.

3.4

Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit is effective and conforms
sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / LGAN to ensure that the opinion
given in the Annual Report can be relied upon for assurance purposes when
considering the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual
Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial
and other resources to ensure value for money.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.
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6.4

Financial Considerations
None

6.5

Legal
None.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS)
Local Government
Application Note for the
United Kingdom PSIAS
Accounts & Audit
Regulations 2015

Internal Audit

John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
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7.

Background and Detail

7.1

Paragraph 6[1] of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state that “a
relevant authority must, each financial year, conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control.” The Regulations go on to state
that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee or by
members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the
effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms
part of this review.

7.2

Previous reviews have consisted of a self-assessment of compliance with the
current Internal Audit Standards, production of an action plan identifying where
full compliance has not been achieved to ensure full compliance with the
Standards in future and consideration of other qualitative and quantitative
factors when determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit. The Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards are the applicable Standards for 2017/18.

7.3

It is a requirement of the PSIAS that an external assessment of Internal Audit
(EQA) be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. In accordance
with this requirement, an EQA was completed during 2016/17 and reported to
this committee in July 2017.

7.4

Accordingly the annual review for 2017/18 consists of the following:






Update the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March
2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN);
Update the Action Plan created following last years external assessment of
Internal Audit which highlighted areas of good practice and issues and
recommendations to improve the service;
Report upon the results of any satisfaction questionnaires and feedback
from any external regulators;
Report upon any other performance indicators collected in respect of
Internal Audit;
Undertake a self-assessment of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee
for discussion as a separate item on this agenda.

7.5

The self-assessment of compliance with the PSIAS did not identify any areas
of significant non-conformance with the PSIAS / LGAN. For the areas of partial
conformance the effectiveness of the service was not considered to be
seriously affected, as a small number of areas of partial compliance with
PSIAS / LGAN is considered to be acceptable due to local circumstances.

7.6

The Action Plan created following last years external assessment of Internal
Audit has been updated and is attached as Appendix 1. This action plan
identifies some areas in which the service can be further improved and some
revisions to the internal audit processes which may be beneficial in terms of
improving efficiency and transparency. These issues will be considered and
implemented over a period of time where this will result in improvements to the
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service.
7.7

As part of the requirements of PSIAS, Internal Audit are required to produce a
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). The Councils
Internal Audit QAIP was produced based on the Institute of Internal Auditors
model template. This followed discussions with colleagues in other Councils
who were adopting a similar approach. The QAIP is attached at Appendix 2
and covers;






7.8

documented working practices;
quality control process;
performance monitoring;
annual review of effectiveness of Internal Audit; and
an action plan for improvement of the service.

In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest
PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other
factors are deemed to be important when trying to determine the effectiveness
of Internal Audit. These include both qualitative and quantitative issues, such
as:








Feedback from the External Auditors has been good. They “have
concluded that the internal audit service provides an independent and
satisfactory service to the Council and that internal audit work contributes
to an effective internal control environment.”
Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires are issued to all managers with the
final audit report to establish the effectiveness of the audit review. Based
on the questionnaires returned, an average score of 98% has been
achieved, indicating that a good service has been provided.
During 2017/18, 92% of the Audit Plan was completed.
During 2017/18, 56 medium risk recommendations and 235 low risk
recommendations were made and agreed with management for
implementation.
The percentage of recommendations implemented within the timescale
agreed with Managers was 98%.

7.9

The review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee is reported as a
separate item on the agenda of today’s Audit & Regulatory Committee
meeting.

7.10

Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit complies with the
expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal Audit is
therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS /
LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in the Annual Report can be relied
upon for assurance purposes when considering the Annual Governance
Statement 2017/18.
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APPENDIX 1
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council & High Peak Borough Council
2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit – Action Plan
PSIAS

Finding

Resources

Annual Internal Audit Plans
In 2016/17 internal audit
plans were presented to and
approved by Audit
Committees during week
commencing May 2016.
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Resources

Recommendation

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

It would be good practice to
present draft plans to an
earlier meeting so that work
proposed for
commencement on 1 April
had been discussed and
approved by the Audit
Committee.

Consider

This is not feasible due to the
timing of Audit Committee
meetings (February & May).

N/A

N/A

The HoIA should consider
simplifying the questionnaire
to reflect five key questions
relating to:
- Pre-audit engagement
- Focus on relevant risks
- Progression of the audit
- Relevance and timeliness
of reporting
- Added value experience

Consider

The current questionnaire
that is based on CIPFA best
practice will be reviewed to
ensure there is a balance
between content and
response rate.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

Internal Audit Customer
Satisfaction Questionnaire
The service currently issues a
21 point questionnaire to
customers following
completion of each
assignment but only achieves
a response rate of about
50%.
Whilst the outcome of the
questionnaire is generally
positive it would be
beneficial to consider
whether the process might
be amended to encourage
greater interaction.

PSIAS

Finding

Competency

Internal Audit Planning
Whilst internal audit
planning is being increasingly
based upon a risk model as
required by the PSIAS, the
process largely depends at
present on an assessment
devised by internal audit;
rather than reflecting wider
risk issues identified by each
Council.
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The analysis uses different
definitions of risk impact to
those approved within each
Council’s risk management
strategy. This is heavily
focused on financial aspects
which has a tendency to
focus on assignments related
to established systems rather
than other aspects of the
assurance framework that
may be more appropriate in
terms of independent
review.
There should be a direct and
identified link between the
internal audit plan content
discussed with senior
management and the Audit
Committees and the risk
based reasoning for inclusion
of the assignment in the

Recommendation

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

a. Audit Plans should be
constructed through using
an audit needs
assessment process which
achieves the objectives of
the service as set out in
the Internal Audit Charter.
The audit planning
process should be
designed to reflect the
assurance needs of each
Council through
transparent alignment
with the Council wide
approach to risk
management.

Review

The current audit needs
assessment incorporates
strategic risk register
mapping. Consideration will
be given to further aligning
the process with the Councils
risk management approach.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

b. The internal audit
planning process should
further identify and
document other sources
of assurance that are
available and upon which
Councils can place
reliance.

Review

Consideration will be given
to incorporating other
sources of assurance into the
audit planning process.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

c. The starting point for the
development of the
Controls Evaluation
Summary is a preliminary
discussion with
management regarding
the inherent and residual
risks relevant to the audit

Review

There is a longer term aim to
align the audit process more
closely to risk management.
This has to be balanced with
other considerations such as
local external audit
requirements. Audit planning
meetings already include

Ongoing

Audit Manager

PSIAS
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Finding

Recommendation

audit plan as the plan finally
approved should focus on
the perceived needs of all
parties for independent
assurance regarding key
policies, procedures, controls
and assurances upon which
each Council relies.

area under review. This
process could be more
robust. It may aid
assignment planning, if
the management
objectives for the area
under review were also
identified.

In turn this should drive the
preparation of the terms of
reference for each
assignment.

This should result in the
formation of a direct link
with the Authority’s risk
register and the key
mitigating controls
highlighted, thereby
aiding the understanding
and ability of members of
the Audit Committee to
contribute to the
assurance agenda.

The focus for assignments
can therefore be shown to
directly relate to the value of
the ‘control risk’ and as a
result an opinion based upon
the robustness of the
controls and assurances
available to management
and the Council.

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

Ongoing

Audit Manager

discussion of risk registers
and management objectives
and these will be
documented and agreement
of control evaluations
evidenced. In addition key
mitigating controls identified
in risk registers will be tested
to ensure their effectiveness
in reducing inherent risk.

Evidence of the
agreement by the HoIA
and client to the Controls
Evaluation Summary
should be retained on file.

Internal Audit Manual
The internal audit manual
has been updated in
February 2017 represents a
comprehensive record of the
practices to be followed by
internal audit staff and
reflects with the PSIAS.

The internal audit manual
should be updated to reflect
greater alignment with the
risk management policies of
the client authorities
particularly in relation to the
various aspects relating to
planning and reporting

Review

The internal audit manual
will be updated to reflect any
changes implemented as a
result of the issues raised in
this EQA.

PSIAS

Competency
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Finding

Recommendation

The significant emphasis of
the PSIAS reflects the use of
a risk based approach to
internal audit work and in
this respect it is felt that
greater alignment with the
risk management policies
and appetite of the client
local authorities would be
beneficial.
Performance and
Development Review (PDR)

(grading of
recommendations and
opinions) that have been
identified within the EQA.

The annual performance
review of the Head of
Internal Audit (HoIA) is to be
undertaken by the line
manager as S151 Officer in
accordance with a revised
PDR approved policy.
Assignment Planning

The PDR process for the HoIA
should be informed by
inviting the Chairs of the two
Audit Committees to provide
input to the process.

The service currently initiates
each audit through
engagement with
management which provides
for creation of a Controls
Evaluation Summary; this is
then shared with
management as a basis for
discussion and agreement for
commencement of the audit.

Internal audit working papers Review
should focus on major risks
to the Council that have been
identified and discussed with
the auditee; this should
include an assessment of the
inherent risks in each area
(regardless of whether these
are specifically recorded with
the risk management
system).

The assignment is then
structured around a
framework of expected

The Controls Evaluation
Summary should be

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

Consider

Elected Members do not
have involvement in staffing
matters.

N/A

N/A

There is a longer term aim to
align the audit process more
closely to risk management.
This has to be balanced with
other considerations such as
local external audit
requirements. Audit planning
meetings already include
discussion of risk registers
and management objectives
and these will be
documented and agreement
of control evaluations
evidenced. In addition key

Ongoing

Audit Manager

PSIAS
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Delivery

Finding

Recommendation

controls and which is only
loosely related to risks which
have been considered with
management.

constructed based upon the
principal inherent risks
identified and not expected
controls. This will allow the
audit to naturally reflect
assurance regarding the risks
identified within the ‘Control
Matrix’.

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

Ongoing

Audit Manager

mitigating controls identified
in risk registers will be tested
to ensure their effectiveness
in reducing inherent risk.
Consideration will be given
to incorporating other
sources of assurance into the
audit planning process.

The service should also seek
to identify and record the
other assurances available at
an early stage in each
assignment as this will aid
staff when formulating an
overall opinion.
An example template is
provided at Appendix A.
Focus on pre-identified
controls
Assignments are currently
undertaken by reference to
controls; there is a tendency
for these to reflect KLOE
based controls or those from
previous audit work rather
than be generated to reflect
the materiality of the current
risk involved.
The service has more
recently commenced
consideration of wider risk
aspects relating to the area

The use of risk as a basis for
the control evaluation
summary will allow auditors
to focus on the key controls
and assurances which reflect
the most material control
risk to the area under review.
The service should continue
to develop pre-audit
communication with
management to focus on
significant risk and key
controls.

Review

There is a longer term aim to
align the audit process more
closely to risk management.
This has to be balanced with
other considerations such as
local external audit
requirements. Audit planning
meetings already include
discussion of risk registers
and management objectives
and these will be
documented and agreement
of control evaluations
evidenced. In addition key

PSIAS

Finding

Recommendation

Grading

subject to review.

Delivery
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Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

mitigating controls identified
in risk registers will be tested
to ensure their effectiveness
in reducing inherent risk.
Consideration will be given
to incorporating other
sources of assurance into the
audit planning process.

Supervision
Demonstration of effective
supervision is necessary in
order to both ensure the
quality of the review and
provide appropriate
instruction to staff regarding
the delivery of the internal
audit methodology.
Whilst it is recognised that
the staff can consult each
other regarding progress on
work a common, formal and
consistent process should
exist in order to demonstrate
supervision as each audit
progresses.
Closing meetings
At present no formal
mechanism exists for the
management of an exit
meeting as a basis for
discussing the outcomes of
an audit prior to draft report
which is used as a basis for

The service should utilise the
existing Manager Review
process to provide a further
documented trail of
supervision throughout the
audit and cross reference to
discussions and
correspondence by email; in
addition to the formal record
that currently exists when
approving the draft report.

Review

The quality control process
will be reviewed and
amended accordingly.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

The HoIA should consider
whether introducing an exit
meeting form to be
completed on completion of
field work would aid
production of the draft
report and contribute to

Consider

Exit meetings prior to
production of a draft report
currently take place at the
conclusion of audit fieldwork
to ensure factual correctness
and manager buy-in. These
communications will be

31-03-19

Audit Manager

PSIAS

Delivery

Finding

Recommendation

an exit meeting with
management.

reducing the time taken to
finalisation of a report.

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

31-03-19

Audit Manager

documented.

Audit Opinions Recommendations
These are currently
developed and assessed by
each internal auditor, prior
to release of the draft report
and which include a grading
of the recommendations
being made.
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The basis for grading of
recommendations should
influence the overall opinion
for each audit directly, for
example if a risk falling into a
definition of the highest
impact category is identified
(potential for death, loss
greater than £500k) then the
assurance level given is
reduced. Any risk of this
nature should automatically
trigger a negative audit
opinion of ‘limited
assurance’.
Aligning the grading of
internal audit
recommendations with the
impact/likelihood gradings
within each Councils risk
management system

a. Risk definitions used by
internal audit should be
developed to reflect the
risk appetite within each
organisation, and the
definitions of impact and
likelihood used by the
Council. Explanation of
the use of these gradings
should be included in all
reports.
It is recognised best
practice to use
terminology such as High,
Medium and Low or
Fundamental, Significant
and Merits Attention and
perhaps support this with
RAG rated colours linked
to the Council’s risk
management system.
These should be used by
each internal auditor to
grade the
recommendation and
discuss the level of risk to
which the organisation is
exposed with each

Review

The current risk definitions
will be reviewed to ensure
best practice and
consistency.

PSIAS

Finding
provides a consistent
understanding of the relative
importance of findings within
both the internal audit team
and those being audited.
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At present the service adopts
a basis which provides
flexibility for the HoIA to
determine the grading of the
recommendations being
made and the overall
opinions. This does however
lead to inconsistencies with
regard to grading of
recommendations and
overall assurance opinions
being made.

Recommendation

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

b. Consideration should be
given to removing the
need to include ‘low’
rated recommendations
in formal audit reports;
alternatively reflecting on
these in discussion at the
closure meeting and
confirmed in a side letter
or email to the manager.
This would aid the profile
of internal audit through
concentrating on things
that really matter in
relation to significant risk
as defined within risk
management policies.

Consider

The current risk definitions
will be reviewed to ensure
best practice and
consistency.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

The grading of reports should
be based upon the level of
risk exposure identified
within the review and reflect
the highest ranked
recommendation being
reported upon.

Review

The current risk definitions
and assurance levels will be
reviewed to ensure best
practice and consistency.

31-03-19

Audit Manager

auditee at the exit
meeting.

Audit Opinions - Overall
opinions
These are currently based
upon the personal
judgement of each auditor,
within the definitions
specified in the following
table. These are subject to
review by the HoIA prior to
release of the draft report.
Wider best practice provides
for three levels of opinion
being substantial, adequate
(reasonable) or limited as

Best practice would reflect:
- Where a fundamental risk
(red) is identified that
limited assurance is given.
- Where significant risks

PSIAS

Finding

Recommendation

this provides a clear
indication to stakeholders of
the level of assurance that
can be gained. This opinion
can then be aligned directly
with the nature of the risks
being identified and the
grading of those
recommendations being
made.

(amber) are identified
then adequate assurance
is given, and
- Where ‘merits attention’
(green) risks are identified
these are not referred to
in the report and
substantial assurance is
given.

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

Consider

The annual report content
will be reviewed in
accordance with best
practice.

30-06-19

Audit Manager

An example of a matrix for
providing overall assurance
opinions is included as
Appendix C.
Delivery

Annual Report
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The HoIA produces an
Annual Internal Audit report
which summarises the years
work and includes analysis of
performance. The opinion
reflects a format that takes
account of all information
and sources of assurance
available to the HoIA and
therefore reflects upon the
assurances provided in each
audit supporting the current
statement:
“Based on the work
undertaken by Internal Audit
during the year and the
resultant assurance opinions
outlined above, and the
implementation by

In alignment with
recommendations made
earlier, the internal audit
plan should be constructed
to provide an explicit link to
risk and the other assurances
available so that the HoIA is
able to provide wider
assurance to each Authority
in support of the governance
statement.
Best practice is that the
Annual Report should
contain reference to all
significant risks and
therefore co-ordination with
and an understanding of
issues being raised by the
range of assurance sources

PSIAS

Finding

Recommendation
available is essential in order
to meet this broader scope.
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management of the
recommendations agreed,
and also comments made by
our external auditors,
Internal Audit can provide
reasonable assurance that
the Council’s governance
arrangements including risk
management and systems of
internal control were
operating adequately and
effectively. Where
deficiencies in internal
control have been identified,
we have been assured that
these have been or will be
resolved in an appropriate
manner and we will continue
to monitor such cases”.
Whilst this reflects a position
it could be better structured
to meet the requirements of
the PSIAS as it:
‘must also include significant
risk exposures and control
issues, including fraud risks,
governance issues, and other
matters needed or requested
by senior management and
the board’.

An example of the words
which may be used has been
provided in Appendix B.

Grading

Management Response

Target Date

Responsible Officer

Recommendation grading

Explanation

Enhance

The internal audit managed service must enhance its practice in order to
demonstrate transparent alignment with the relevant PSIAS in order to
demonstrate a contribution to the achievement of the organisations objectives in
relation to risk management, governance and control.

Review

The Internal audit division should review its approach in this area to better reflect
the application of the PSIAS.

Consider

The internal audit division should consider whether revision of its approach merits
attention in order to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the delivery of
services
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APPENDIX 2

Staffordshire Moorlands DC & High Peak BC
Internal Audit Service
Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme
1

Introduction
Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) is designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders (the Audit Committee, Senior
Management, the External Auditor and Operational Managers etc) that Internal Audit:


Conforms with the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and
the Standards;



Has an adequate Internal Audit Charter, goals, objectives, polices and procedures;



Contributes to the organisations governance, risk management and control
processes;



Has complete coverage of the audit universe;



Complies with applicable laws, regulations and other standards that the internal
audit activity may be subject to;



Has identified the risks affecting the operation of the internal audit activity itself;



Has an effective continuous improvement activity in place and adopts best
practice; and



Adds value to improve the organisations operations and contributes to the
attainment of the organisations objectives.

The Audit Manager is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers all types of
Internal Audit activities, including consultancy. The QAIP must include both internal and
external assessments. Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical and
external assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years.
The QAIP is reviewed on an annual basis.
2

Internal Assessments
Internal Assessments are made up of both ongoing reviews and periodic reviews.
Ongoing reviews
Ongoing reviews provide assurance that the processes in place are working effectively to
ensure that quality is delivered on an audit by audit basis. This includes continuous
monitoring of:


Engagement planning and supervision (preapproval of the audit scope, innovative
best practices, budgeted hours, and assigned staff);



Standard working practices (including working paper procedures, sign off, report
review, checklists to ensure that the audit process has been followed );



Feedback from other clients and stakeholders; and



Analysing performance metrics to measure audit plan completion and stakeholder
value.
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Periodic reviews
Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’s Charter,
the Standards, Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core Principles for
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the quality of the audit
work and supervision, policies and procedures supporting the internal audit activity, the
added value to the organisation and the achievement of performance standards.
Periodic assessments will be conducted through:


Working paper reviews for conformance to the definition of Internal Auditing, Core
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the
Standards, and internal audit policies and procedures;



Self-assessment of the internal audit activity with objectives established as part of
the QAIP components – Governance, Professional Practice and Communication;



Review of internal audit performance measures and benchmarking of best
practices. Periodic activity and performance reporting to the Audit Committee and
other stakeholders as deemed necessary.



Annual self-review of conformance to the PSIAS.

The periodic self assessment should identify the quality of ongoing performance and
opportunities for improvement and to check and validate the objectives and criteria used in
the QAIP. The self assessment will be completed on an annual basis and the results
reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management.
External Assessment
The External Assessment will consist of a broad scope of coverage that includes the
following:


Conformance with the Standards, the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of
Internal Auditing, Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing,
the Code of Ethics and Internal Audit’s Charter, plans, policies, procedures,
practices, and any applicable legislative and regulatory requirements;



Expectations of Internal Audit as expressed by the Audit Committee and Senior
Management;



Integration of the Internal Audit activity into the governance process;



The mix of staff knowledge, experiences, and disciplines, including use of tools
and techniques, and process improvements; and



A determination as to whether Internal Audit adds value and improves the
Council’s operations.

An external assessment will be conducted every five years by a qualified, independent
assessor from outside the Council. The assessment will be in the form of a full external
assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation. The format of the
external assessment will be agreed with the Audit Committee and Executive Director
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer.
Assessment scale
The scale to assess the level of conformance of the internal audit activity with the
standards is as follows:
Generally Conforms / Partially Conforms / Does Not Conform
(IIA Quality Assessment Manual Scale)
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Reporting on the Quality Program
Internal Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management on an
annual basis. The internal assessment report will be accompanied by a written action
plan in response to significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.
External Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management. The
external assessment report will be accompanied by a written action plan in response to
significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.
Follow up – The Audit Manager will implement appropriate follow up actions to ensure that
recommendations made in the reports and action plans developed are implemented in a
reasonable timeframe.
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Agenda Item 12
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to the Audit & Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018
TITLE:

2017/18 Annual Review of the Effectiveness
of the Audit & Regulatory Committee

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive
Councillor for Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

John Leak – Internal Audit Manager

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached:
Appendix 1 - CIPFA Checklist – Self Assessment of Good Practice
Appendix 2 - CIPFA Assessment Tool - Evaluating the Effectiveness of the
Audit Committee
Appendix 3 - Audit & Regulatory Committee Terms of Reference
1.

Reason for the Report:

1.1

Having considered the report on the Annual Review of the Effectiveness of
Internal Audit, members of the Audit & Regulatory Committee will be aware of
the requirement to comply with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015. As
part of this process of assurance, best practice suggests that an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory Committee should be
undertaken.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the committee consider and approve the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Audit & Regulatory Committee.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report and accompanying appendices will assist the Audit & Regulatory
Committee in their consideration and discussion on the effectiveness of this
Committee, and how this is to be measured. CIPFA guidance published in
December 2013 sets out the basis for the self assessment.

3.2

A report was presented to this committee in September 2014 which provided
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Councillors with a summary of the content of the CIPFA publication ‘Audit
Committees - Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2013
Edition’, in order to inform future reviews of the Audit & Regulatory Committee.
The terms of reference of the Audit & Regulatory Committee should be based
upon this CIPFA guidance. It was resolved that the principles in the report be
endorsed and the report noted.
3.3

An audit committee’s effectiveness should be judged by the contribution it
makes to, and the beneficial impact it has on, the authority’s business. Since it
is primarily an advisory body, it can be more difficult to identify how the audit
committee has made a difference. Evidence of effectiveness will usually be
characterised as ‘influence’, ‘persuasion’ and ‘support’. A good standard of
performance against recommended practice, together with a knowledgeable
and experienced membership are essential requirements for delivering
effectiveness.

3.4

Using the recommended practice in the CIPFA guidance should help the
authority to achieve a good standard of performance. Included within this
guidance is a checklist ‘Self-Assessment of Good Practice’ which will support
an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the audit
committee.

3.5

Also contained within the guidance is an assessment tool ‘Evaluating the
Effectiveness of the Audit Committee’ to help audit committee members to
consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more.
To be considered effective, the audit committee should be able to identify
evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements.

3.6

The draft self-assessment checklist (Appendix 1) and the draft assessment
tool (Appendix 2) have been completed by the Audit Manager in conjunction
with the Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer. The committee are
requested to discuss these documents and form agreement on their content.

3.7

The self-assessment checklist and assessment tool scores reflect the ongoing
work to develop the committee structure, skills and knowledge following a
report presented to this committee in September 2016.

3.8

Councillors will be aware that following the knowledge and skills framework
self-assessment, changes were made to the structure and terms of reference
of the committee in order to enhance existing arrangements and fill knowledge
gaps.

3.9

As the committee will be considering and discussing the effectiveness of the
Audit & Regulatory Committee, it is appropriate for the Audit & Regulatory
Committee’s terms of reference to be considered also. For ease of reference
the Audit & Regulatory Committee’s Terms of Reference are attached at
Appendix 3.

3.10

Should any amendments to the terms of reference be considered appropriate,
the committee can make an appropriate recommendation to Council.
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4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The assurance provided by the work of the Audit & Regulatory Committee
informs the Annual Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm
effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

There are no options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2

Workforce
None.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
None.

6.5

Legal
None.

6.6

Sustainability
None.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None.

6.8

Risk Assessment
None.
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers
CIPFA Booklet ‘Audit
Committees - Practical
Guidance for Local
Authorities and Police’
Accounts & Audit
[England] Regulations
2015

Location

Contact details

Internal Audit

John Leak
Audit Manager
Tel: (01538) 395695
e-mail: john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
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APPENDIX 1

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
SELF-ASSESSMENT OF GOOD PRACTICE 2017/18
This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in
CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police and the
CIPFA practical guidance. Where an audit committee has a high degree of performance
against the good practice principles then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly
based and has in place a knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in
developing an effective audit committee.
A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee work
programme and training plans. It can also inform an annual audit report.
Good practice questions

Yes

Partly

Audit committee purpose and governance
1

Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee?



2

Does the audit committee report directly to full council?
(Applicable to local government only.)
Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the
committee in accordance with CIPFA’s Position Statement?



4

Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and
accepted across the authority?



5

Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in
meeting the requirements of good governance?



6

Are the arrangements to hold the Committee to account for its
performance operating satisfactorily?



3



Functions of the committee
7

8

9

Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the
core areas identified in CIPFA’s Position Statement?


good governance





assurance framework





internal audit





external audit





financial reporting





risk management





value for money or best value





counter-fraud and corruption



Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate
consideration has been given to all core areas?



Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified
in CIPFA’s Position Statement and whether it would be
appropriate for the committee to undertake them?
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No

Good practice questions

Yes

10

Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited,
are plans in place to address this?

N/A

11

Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not
taking on any decision-making powers that are not in line with
its core purpose?

Partly



Membership and support
12

Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of
the committee been selected?
This should include:
 separation from the executive
 an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the
membership
 a size of committee that is not unwieldy
 where independent members are used, that they have been
appointed using an appropriate process.






13

Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge
and skills?



14

Are arrangements in place to support the committee with
briefings and training?



15

Has the membership of the committee been assessed against
the core knowledge and skills framework and found to be
satisfactory?

16

17

Does the committee have good working relations with key
people and organisations, including external audit, internal
audit and the chief financial officer?
Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the
committee provided?






Effectiveness of the committee
18

Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from
those interacting with the committee or relying on its work?



19

Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding
value to the organisation?



20

Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas
of weakness?
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No

APPENDIX 2

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
EVALUATING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18
Assessment key
5

Clear evidence is available from a number of sources that the committee is actively
supporting improvements across all aspects of this area. The improvements made
are clearly identifiable.

4

Clear evidence from some sources that the committee is actively and effectively
supporting improvement across some aspects of this area.

3

The committee has had mixed experience in supporting improvement in this area.
There is some evidence that demonstrates their impact but there are also significant
gaps.

2

There is some evidence that the committee has supported improvements, but the
impact of this support is limited.

1

No evidence can be found that the audit committee has supported improvements in
this area.
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Areas where the audit
committee can add value by
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation,
examples, areas
of strength and
weakness

Overall
assessment:
5–1
See key above
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Promoting the principles of Providing robust review of the AGS and the assurances
good governance and their underpinning it.
application to decision making.
Working with key members/governors to improve their
understanding of the AGS and their contribution to it.
Supporting reviews/audits of governance arrangements.
Participating in self-assessments of governance arrangements.
Working with partner audit committees to review governance
arrangements in partnerships.

Annual review &
approval of AGS.
Review of progress
against AGS action
plan.
Review of IA & EA
findings.

3

Contributing to the development Monitoring the implementation of recommendations from
of
an
effective
control auditors.
environment.
Encouraging ownership of the internal control framework by
appropriate managers.
Raising significant concerns over controls with appropriate senior
managers.

Review of progress
against all IA
recommendations.
Robust challenge
of IA findings.

4

Supporting the establishment of
arrangements
for
the
governance of risk and for
effective
arrangements
to
manage risks.

Reviewing risk management arrangements and
effectiveness, e.g. risk management benchmarking.
Monitoring improvements.
Holding risk owners to account for major/strategic risks.

their Approval of RM
Strategy.
Review and
challenge of RM
updates.

Advising on the adequacy of the
assurance
framework
and
considering whether assurance
is deployed efficiently and
effectively.

Specifying its assurance needs, identifying gaps or overlaps in
assurance.
Seeking to streamline assurance gathering and reporting.
Reviewing the effectiveness of assurance providers, e.g. internal
audit, risk management, external audit.

Review of
effectiveness of IA,
EA, RM, Treasury
Management &
AGS.

3

3
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Areas where the audit
committee can add value by
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit committee can add value and
provide evidence of effectiveness

Self-evaluation,
examples, areas
of strength and
weakness

Supporting the quality of the
internal
audit
activity,
particularly by underpinning its
organisational independence.

Reviewing the audit charter and functional reporting
arrangements.
Assessing the effectiveness of internal audit arrangements and
supporting improvements.

Approval of IA
Charter.
Robust challenge
of IA work.
Annual
assessment of
effectiveness of IA.

5

Aiding the achievement of the
authority’s goals and objectives
through helping to ensure
appropriate governance, risk,
control
and
assurance
arrangements.

Reviewing major projects and programmes to ensure that
governance and assurance arrangements are in place.
Reviewing the effectiveness of performance management
arrangements.

Review and
approval of AGS
process.
Governance, risk,
control and
assurance
arrangements
reviewed.

3

Supporting the development of Ensuring that assurance on value for money arrangements is
robust
arrangements
for included in the assurances received by the audit committee.
ensuring value for money.
Considering how performance in value for money is evaluated as
part of the AGS.

Review of IA & EA
VFM assurances.
Review and
approval of AGS
process.

3

Helping
the
authority
to
implement the values of good
governance, including effective
arrangements for countering
fraud and corruptions risks.

Review & Approval
of AF&C & RIPA
policies.
Review of
arrangements for
fraud risks to be
developed.

2

Reviewing arrangements against the standards set out in
CIPFA’s Managing the Risk of Fraud (Red Book 2).
Reviewing fraud risks and the effectiveness of the organisation’s
strategy to address those risks.
Assessing the effectiveness of ethical governance arrangements
for both staff and governors.

Overall
assessment:
5–1
See key above

Areas
where
the
audit Examples of how the audit committee can add value and provide Self-evaluation,
committee can add value by evidence of effectiveness
examples, areas of
supporting improvement
strength and
weakness
Promoting
effective
public
reporting to the authority’s
stakeholders
and
local
community and measures to
improve
transparency
and
accountability.

Improving how the authority discharges its responsibilities for
public reporting; for example, better targeting at the audience,
plain English.
Reviewing whether decision making through partnership
organisations remains transparent and publicly accessible and
encouraging greater transparency.

All meetings open
to the public.
Agendas and
reports distributed
to media.

Overall
assessment:
5–1
See key above
2
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APPENDIX 3

Terms of Reference – Audit & Regulatory Committee
Composition
1

The Audit & Regulatory Committee shall consist of the following membership:


9 councillors appointed by the Council for such term of office as
determined by the Council.



3 independent non-voting members appointed to attend and participate at
committee meetings.

2

The Committee shall report direct to Council on the matters contained in its
Terms of Reference (below) in accordance with the Council’s Constitution and
Procedure Rules contained therein.

3

The Committee may:


appoint a sub-committee of three elected members to deal with urgent
and minor matters within the Committee’s terms of reference.



appoint a special panel of elected members with full delegated powers
to take a decision on a planning application made by the Council where
the Development Control Committee is minded to refuse it.



appoint a sub-committee of six elected members to make
recommendations relating to the operation of the Council’s
Constitution.

Statement of Purpose
1

The Audit & Regulatory Committee is a key component of High Peak Borough
Council’s corporate governance. It provides an independent and high-level
focus on the audit, assurance and reporting arrangements that underpin good
governance and financial standards.

2

The purpose of the Audit & Regulatory Committee is to provide independent
assurance to the members of the adequacy of the risk management
framework and the internal control environment. It provides independent
review of High Peak Borough Council’s governance, risk management and
control frameworks and oversees the financial reporting and annual
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governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, helping
to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place.
3

The Committee has responsibility for other matters including elections, the
Name and status of areas and individuals, parish/town councils, by-laws and
orders and other regulatory issues.

Governance, risk and control
1

To review the council’s corporate governance arrangements against the good
governance framework and consider annual governance reports and
assurances.

2

To review and approve the Annual Governance Statement and consider
whether it properly reflects the risk environment and supporting assurances,
taking into account internal audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the council’s framework of governance, risk management and
control.

3

To consider the council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements.

4

To consider the council’s framework of assurance and ensure that it
adequately addresses the risks and priorities of the council.

5

To approve the risk management strategy and monitor the effective
development and operation of risk management in the council.

6

To monitor progress in addressing risk-related issues reported to the
committee.

7

To consider reports on the effectiveness of internal controls and monitor the
implementation of agreed actions.

8

To review the assessment of fraud risks and potential harm to the council
from fraud and corruption.

9

To approve and monitor the counter-fraud and corruption strategy and
whistleblowing policy, actions and resources.

10

To approve the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) policy
and procedures and monitor the Council’s use of RIPA powers.

11

To recommend to Council the approval of the Annual Treasury Management
Strategy and Annual Treasury Management Report and scrutinise all treasury
management reports.
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Internal audit
1

To approve the internal audit charter.

2

To review proposals made in relation to the appointment of external providers
of internal audit services and to make recommendations.

3

To approve the risk-based internal audit plan, including internal audit’s
resources requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance
and any work required to place reliance upon those other sources.

4

To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based internal audit plan
and resource requirements.

5

To make appropriate enquires of both management and the head of internal
audit to determine if there any inappropriate scope or resources limitations.

6

To consider reports from the head of internal audit on the internal audit’s
performance during the year, including the performance of external providers
of internal audit services. These will include:


Updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of
concern and action in hand as a result of internal audit.



Regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance and Improvement
Programme.



Reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform
to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government
Application Note, considering whether the non-conformance is significant
enough that it must be included in the Annual Governance Statement.

7

To consider the head of internal audit’s annual report:


The statement of the level of conformance with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note and the results
of the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that supports the
statement – these will indicate the reliability of the conclusions of internal
audit.



The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s
framework of governance, risk management and control together with the
summary of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the
committee in reviewing the Annual Governance Statement.

8

To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as requested.
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9

To receive reports outlining the action taken where the head of internal audit
has concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be
unacceptable to the authority or there are concerns about progress with the
implementation of agreed actions.

10

To contribute to the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme and in
particular, to the external quality assessment of internal audit that takes place
at least once every five years.

11

To consider a report on the effectiveness of internal audit to support the
Annual Governance Statement, where required to do so by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations.

12

To support the development of effective communication with the head of
internal audit.

External audit
1

To consider the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the
report to those charged with governance.

2

To consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor.

3

To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it
gives value for money.

4

To commission work from internal and external audit.

5

To advise and recommend on the effectiveness of relationships between
external and internal audit and other inspection agencies or relevant bodies.

Financial reporting
1

To review and approve the annual statement of accounts. Specifically, to
consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and
whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements or from the
audit that need to be brought to the attention of the council.

2

To consider the external auditor’s report to those charged with governance on
issues arising from the audit of the accounts.

3

In relation to the approval of the annual statement of accounts, only the
elected members of the Council shall be entitled to vote upon any such
resolution, in accordance with the relevant statutory provisions concerning the
regulation and control of an authority’s finances by elected members alone.
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Accountability arrangements
1

To report to those charged with governance on the committee’s findings,
conclusions

and

recommendations

concerning

the

adequacy

and

effectiveness of their governance, risk management and internal control
frameworks; financial reporting arrangements, and internal and external audit
functions.
2

To report to full council on a regular basis on the committee’s performance in
relation to the terms of reference and the effectiveness of the committee in
meeting its purpose.

Elections and Parish/Town Councils
1

Duty to appoint an electoral registration officer

2

Power to assign officers in relation to requisitions of the registration officer

3

Functions in relation to parishes and parish councils

4

Power to dissolve parish councils

5

Power to make orders for grouping parishes, dissolving groups and
separating parishes from groups

6

Duty to appoint returning officer for local government elections, referenda and
Police Commissioner Elections

7

Duty to provide assistance at European Parliamentary elections

8

Duty to divide constituency into polling districts

9

Power to divide electoral divisions and wards into polling districts at local
government elections

10

Power to designate polling places

11

Powers in respect of holding of elections

12

Power to pay expenses properly incurred by electoral registration officers

13

Power to fill vacancies in the event of insufficient nominations

14

Duty to declare vacancy in office in certain cases

15

Duty to give public notice of a casual vacancy

16

Power to make temporary appointments to parish councils under Section 91
of the Local Government Act 1972

17

Power to determine fees and conditions for supply of copies of, or extracts
from, elections documents
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18

Power to submit proposals to the Secretary of State for an order under section
10 (pilot schemes for local elections in England and Wales) of the
Representation of the People Act 2000

Name and status of areas and individuals
1

Power to change the name of the Borough (recommendation to Full Council)

2

Power to change the name of a parish (recommendation to Full Council)

3

Power to confer title of honorary freeman (recommendation to Full Council)

Byelaws and Orders
1

Power to promote or oppose local or personal Bills and to consider the making
of an order identifying a place as a designated public place for the purposes of
police powers in relation to alcohol consumption for recommendation to full
council for approval

Regulatory Matters
1

Power to make payments or provide other benefits in cases of
maladministration etc.

2

Power to approve or make recommendations to Full Council with regards to
the operation of the Council’s Constitution in accordance with Article 14 of the
Constitution.

3

Any other matter involving a regulatory or quasi judicial, function of the
Council which by law cannot be the responsibility of the Executive and for
which no other provision is made in the Constitution

4

Functions under any of the “relevant statutory provisions” within the meaning
of Part 1 (health, safety and welfare in connection with work, and control of
dangerous substances) of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, to the
extent that those functions are discharged otherwise than in the authority’s
capacity as an employer

5

All regulatory functions under the Derbyshire Act 1981

6

The making and revocation of appointments to outside bodies where the
appointments relate to Council functions

7

Making recommendations to the Council on the nomination of the Mayor

8

Matters relating to civic and ceremonial protocol and the mayoralty
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Agenda Item 13
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to Audit and Regulatory Committee
25th July 2018

TITLE:

Review of Polling Station

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR

Councillor Emily Thrane

CONTACT OFFICER:

Marion Hancock - Senior Elections Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

Whaley Bridge – Fernilee Ward

Appendices attached: Appendix A - Returning Officer’s response.
1.

Reason for the Report:
1.1

2.

Recommendation
2.1

3.

To seek approval to change the location of a polling place in the
Fernilee Ward of the Borough, as the current polling station is due to
close to enable renovation works to take place.

That the Committee approves the change of the polling place to enable
the polling station location in the Fernilee Ward to change from
Methodist Church at Elnor Lane, Fernilee to the Shady Oak Public
House, Long Hill, Fernilee.

Executive Summary
3.1

The Council has responsibility for designating polling places within a
polling district and the Returning Officer has responsibility for specifying
the polling stations within a polling place to be used in an election.
Polling station locations are reviewed periodically and occasionally the
current location needs to change.

3.2

In this case, renovation works to the Church at Fernilee will make the
current location unusable during the Borough, Town and Parish
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Elections in May 2019. A review of alternative locations has taken place
and the Shady Oak Public House is available and suitable.
3.3

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities
4.1

5.

The Returning Officer has been consulted upon the proposed change
of location and his comments are set out at Appendix A.

The recommendation in this report will support the corporate aim of
ensuring our services are easily available to all our residents.

Implications
5.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications

5.2

Workforce
No implications

5.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

5.4

Financial Considerations
None directly

5.5

Legal
As referred to within the report.

5.6

Sustainability
No implications

6.

Background and Detail
6.1

Every relevant authority in the UK must designate a polling place for
every polling district in the constituency. The Returning Officer for the
particular election must provide a sufficient number of polling stations
and allot the electors to those polling stations in such manner as he or
thinks the most convenient.

6.2

Following a review of polling station locations ahead of the Borough,
Town and Parish Elections in May 2019 we were notified that the
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Methodist Church at Fernilee is due to be renovated and the building
would not be available for use as a polling station next year.
6.3

The Shady Oak Public House was identified as a suitable alternative
option. The Public House is accessible for users of vehicles and on foot
and it is suitable for voters with disabilities. The area within the
premises which is used for casting votes will be separate from the area
used for licensable activities. The occupiers of the building have been
approached and they have confirmed that the building can be made
available if the recommendation is supported.

6.4

Ward Members have been consulted and no objections have been
received and the Town Council will be notified about the proposed
change of location.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director and Monitoring Officer
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APPENDIX A

Change of Polling Station – Whaley Bridge – Fernilee Ward
WB2
Returning Officer’s response
The following is the response we have received from the High Peak Borough Council’s
Returning Officer with regards to the Review:
Dear Sir/Madam
Please find below my comments:
District Ward
WB2
Fernilee Ward
Whaley Bridge

Polling Station(s)
Shady Oak Fernilee Whaley
Bridge

Comments
Due to the renovation works that
are needed at the Methodist
Church at Fernilee, the access
difficulties and the limited parking
facilities, I do support the
proposed change of polling station
location to the Shady Oak Public
House. The new location has
adequate polling station facilities,
good parking and is accessible for
voters with disabilities.

Yours sincerely

Simon W Baker
Returning Officer
High Peak Borough Council
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AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19
Item

Oct
2018

Feb
2019

May
2019

July
2019

Details









Reports on progress against the audit plan inc. key
performance information.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Internal Audit Progress Report



Annual Audit Plan

To consider and approve the Annual Audit Pan.

Internal Audit Annual Report



Annual Review of Effectiveness of IA



To consider Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
Council’s internal control environment.
To consider an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Council’s system of internal audit.
To consider updates to the formal document that
defines Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and
responsibility.



A summary of emerging national issues and
developments that the Committee may wish to
consider. Also provides a summary of progress on the
audit – where not covered by other items on the
agenda.

Internal Audit Charter
EXTERNAL AUDIT
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Audit Committee Update



Audit Fee Letter



Audit Plan

Letter setting out annual audit fee .



Annual Audit Letter



Certification of Claims & Returns Annual
Report



Informing the Audit Risk Assessment



Agenda Item 14



Audit Findings Report

Report specifying the detailed risks that external audit
consider as part of their work, the audit approach and
the result of any interim work
To consider the external auditor’s report to those
charged with governance on issues arising from the
audit of the accounts and the VFM conclusion.
To consider the external auditor’s annual report on
their overall assessment of the Council.
Report summarising the findings from work to certify
grant claims made to the government..
To consider the risk assessment and understanding of
management processes.

Item

Oct
2018

Feb
2019

May
2018

July
2019

Details

FINANCE


Statement of Accounts
Treasury Management Update









Annual Treasury Management Report


Treasury Management Strategy

To review and approve the Council’s annual
Statement of Accounts.
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury
Management position to date and the projected
outturn.
To recommend to Council for approval the annual
Treasury
Management
Report
summarising
performance and compliance with the Strategy and
Prudential Indicators.
Oversight and scrutiny of the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy.

CORPORATE
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Annual Governance Statement (AGS)


AGS Progress Against Action Plan
Risk Management Update






Risk Management Strategy
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy



Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act Policy
& Procedures




Whistleblowing Policy

To review and approve the Annual Governance
Statement and the underlying assurance evaluation
process and supporting evidence.
Report on progress made against the actions raised
as part of the previous years Annual Governance
Statement process.
Report on developments in the Council’s risk
management arrangements.
Update of the Risk Management Strategy (biennial
February)
To consider updates to the Council’s Anti-Fraud &
Corruption Policy.
To consider updates to the Council’s Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act Policy & Procedures
To consider updates to the Council’s Whistleblowing
Policy.

AUDIT & REGULATORY COMMITTEE
Agree Programme of Work
Review of Effectiveness of A&R Committee
inc. Terms of Reference









To agree future work programme of A&R Committee.



To consider the annual review of the effectiveness of
the Audit & Regulatory Committee and the A&R
Committee’s Terms of Reference.

